
Meeting papers

Pension Committee

Thursday 8 December 2022 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester





    

Pension Committee

Thursday 8 December 2022 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES Andrea Griffiths

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST - 

Members of the Committee are invited to declare any financial or 
pecuniary interest related to specific matters on the agenda.

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda.

Andrea Griffiths

3  PUBLIC QUESTIONS - 

To answer any written questions about matters that are within the powers 
and duties of the Committee. The closing date/time for the receipt of 
questions is 10.00am on 2nd December 2022.

To answer any oral question(s) put by members of the public.

Depending on the nature of the oral questions asked it may not be 
possible to provide a comprehensive answer at the meeting, in which case 
a written answer will be supplied as soon as reasonably possible after the 
meeting.

Andrea Griffiths

4  MEMBERS' QUESTIONS - 

To answer any written members’ questions. The closing date/time for the 
receipt of questions is 10.00am on 2nd December 2022.

Andrea Griffiths

5  PENSION COMMITTEE MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8)

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 23rd 
September 2022.

Andrea Griffiths

6  DRAFT MINUTES OF THE PENSION BOARD (Pages 9 - 14)

To note the draft minutes of the Pension Board held on the 20th October 
2022.

Andrea Griffiths

7  GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND QUARTERLY UPDATE - PART Matthew 



    

1 (Pages 15 - 132)

The Committee is asked to note the funding, investment position and 
governance activities.  The Committee is also asked to acknowledge the 
Grant Thornton External Audit Findings Report and notes the Annual 
Report.  

Trebilcock

8  RISK REGISTER (Pages 133 - 144)

The Committee is asked note the Risk Register and the current elevated 
risks.

Matthew 
Trebilcock

9  EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

That in accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 the public be excluded from the meeting for the following 
agenda items, because it is likely that if members of the public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12 A to the Act and the 
public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information to the public.

Cllr Lynden 
Stowe

10  EXEMPT MINUTES (Pages 145 - 154)

To approve as a correct record the exempt minutes of the meetings held 
on the 23rd September 2022.

Andrea Griffiths

11  DRAFT EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PENSION BOARD (Pages 155 - 
160)

To note the draft exempt minutes of the Pension Board held on the 20th 
October 2022.

Andrea Griffiths

12  GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND QUARTERLY UPDATE - PART 
2 (Pages 161 - 228)

The Committee is asked to approve the report recommendation.  

Matthew 
Trebilcock

13  INVESTMENT ADVISORS QUARTERLY REPORT AND STRATEGY 
ASSET ALLOCATION (Pages 229 - 264)

The Committee is asked to approve the report recommendation.

John Arthur

14  PRESENTATION AND INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE REVIEW David Vickers

Membership –  Cllr Dr Andrew Miller, Cllr Matt Babbage, Cllr Mark Mackenzie-Charrington, 
Cllr Wendy Thomas, Cllr Colin Hay, Cllr Lynden Stowe and Cllr David Brown

Added Members - Peter Clark

Co-Opted Member - Julia Atkinson and Cllr David Gray

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer (Rob 
Ayliffe 01452 328506/ e-mail: rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the start of 
the meeting.

mailto:Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk


    

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or 
Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact:
Andrea Griffiths, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
:01452 324206/e-mail: andrea.griffiths@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

PENSION COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting of the Pension Committee held on Friday 23 September 
2022 commencing at 10.00 am.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

Cllr Dr Andrew Miller
Cllr Matt Babbage
Cllr Mark Mackenzie-
Charrington
Cllr Wendy Thomas
Cllr Colin Hay

Cllr Lynden Stowe
Cllr David Brown
Peter Clark
Cllr David Gray
Atkinson

Apologies: Cllr David Brown & Cllr Stephen Hirst

In Attendance: Matthew Trebilcock (Head of Pensions), John Arthur (Independent 
Advisor), Julie West (Hymans) and Andrea Griffiths (Democratic 
Services)

71. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllr Hirst and Cllr Brown.  

The Chairman welcomed Julia Atkinson, newly appointed employer representative 
to the meeting.  

72. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST - 

No declarations of interest were made.

73. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - 

No pubic questions were received.

74. MEMBERS' QUESTIONS - 

No member questions were received.  

75. PENSION COMMITTEE MINUTES - 

Resolved 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

That the minutes of the 16th June 2022 were approved as a correct record.  

76. PENSION BOARD DRAFT NOTES 

The Committee received the draft notes of the Pension Board held on the 21st July 
2022.  

77. GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND QUARTERLY UPDATE - PART 1 

The Head of Pensions presented the report which summarised the Fund’s funding 
position, market value, asset allocation, investment performance for the quarter 
ending 30 June 2022.

Members noted that by the end of the quarter to 30 June 2022, the Fund’s total 
market value had decreased by £181.909m, to £2,924.184m and over the quarter, 
total Fund assets produced a negative return of -5.9%, compared to a target of -
5.4%, underperforming the strategic benchmark by 0.5%. It was reported that 
performance over the 3 years to 30 June 2022 was 4.7% annualised slightly behind 
the benchmark by 0.6%.  Despite the decrease the fund was still regarded to be in 
a healthy position.  

The Committee noted that the Government had launched their consultation on 
Governance and Reporting of climate risks, which followed the Taskforce for 
Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) framework, which would require 
administering authorities to consider and report against the four key areas of 
governance, strategy, risk management and targets.  Members were advised that a 
training day would be held at the before the consultation deadline to allow the fund 
to respond.  

The Head of Pensions informed Committee that the Administration Key 
Performance Indicator's (KPI's) were not where he wanted them to be.  The KPIs 
had been impacted by the triennial valuation which had taken up considerable time 
and resources.  However, as the triennial valuation was a critical part of governance 
process and given the efforts of the team, they were ahead of the timetable and 
were working with all employers of the fund.  He reiterated there were currently no 
breaches of the statutory requirements.    

The Head of Pensions explained that two new Pensions Officers had been 
appointed and would be in post in the near future. There were another 4 Pension 
Officer posts to be recruited to.  In addition, the recruitment process for a new 
Pension Administration Manager was underway, which would build more resilience 
into the team as a whole.  The Committee were informed that recruiting across the 
entire LGPS sector remained a challenge as the volume of membership increased 
as did the complexities of peoples circumstances.  The Head of Pension would 
continue to undertake a review of the processes, with the new Pension 
Administration Manager, when appointed, to see how things could be improved 
through efficiencies or through the use of IT systems.  

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

Member were advised that the LGPS National Knowledge assessment would be 
sent to them via email for completion and they were urged to complete the 
assessment as soon as possible.  

Members raised concerns regarding the Pension Fund Administration performance 
figure of 90%, they felt this figure was unrealistic as it hadn’t been achieved for a 
considerable time.  The Committee requested a strategic action plan in order to 
clearly understand the issues affecting the KPI's.  

The Head of Pensions reiterated the KPI's weren't where he personally wanted 
them to be either but many of the issues were systemic as the team had been 
under resourced for a long period of time and had not kept pace with service 
change.  Although he appreciated the need to understand the reasons.  He 
acknowledged the complexity of the fund and the increased requests, which had 
been hampered by IT resources.   

The Head of Pensions reiterated that the service had been under resourced for a 
considerable amount of time and it would undoubtedly take time to bring in staffing 
resources as individual’s knowledge needed to be built upon as it was a complex 
area of work.  He advised the committee that the issues could not be immediately 
resolved just by appointing new staff as it would take 6 to 12 months for these 
additional resources being in a position to aide improvement due to the training and 
upskilling required.  He has already commissioned Hymans to assist in the training 
plan for new recruits as well as support staff, in order to repair the long term issues.  

Some members felt the targets were meaningless and should be realistic in terms 
of what could be achieved, in order to hold those responsible to account.  

In response to a question, members were informed that the team morale was good 
as the team could see additional resources were finally being put in place to 
support them and that they are continuing to receive the support of Committee. 
Many dedicated staff had been working overtime to provide continuity of service in 
these challenging times.   

The Committee were disappointed with the poor investment performance of the 
fund and referred to page 27 of the report.  The Independent Advisor (IA) explained 
that the main issue of underperformance of the majority of managers was due to 
the unusual market situation and the impact of the Responsible Investment ethos of 
the partnership.  He recognised the invasion of Ukraine had affected the quarterly 
performance figures and all commodities across the board.  Overall the IA felt 
Brunel's approach remains appropriate in the current climate.    

Resolved 

That the Committee noted the funding and investment position and 
governance activities as at 30 June 2022.   

78. RISK REGISTER 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

The Head of Pensions explained that in accordance with the Risk Management 
policy agreed by Committee on 3 December 2021, progress and activity in 
managing risks would be monitored and recorded on a risk register and key 
information would be provided on a quarterly basis to the Pension Committee and 
the Pension Board, as part of the regular update reports on governance, 
investments and funding, and administration and communications.  The Committee 
were advised that there were no major changes since the previous review and a 
number of risks remained elevated at this time.  

Members requested for future reference an explanation as to what/why risks had 
changed.    

Resolved 

That the Committee noted the risk register and the current elevated risks and 
the new risks as outlined in the report.  

79. GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE & POLICY STATEMENT 

 The Head of Pensions presented the report and advised the LGPS Regulations 
2013 required the administering authority to measure their governance 
arrangements against the standards set out in the statutory guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government.  It was noted that the 
governance statement review had concluded that we were fully compliant with the 
guidance in the areas that were applicable.  

Resolved 

That the Committee approved the Governance Policy and Compliance 
Statement.  

80. LGPS PERFORMANCE BENCHMARKING REPORT 

 The Committee were advised by the Head of Pensions that the fund participated in 
the LGPS Investment Performance benchmark as undertaken by PIRC.  It was 
noted the fund had been exposed to high volatility associated with the slightly larger 
equity allocation but over the last 10 years this had delivered a return in line with 
the average.  

Resolved

That the Committee noted the LGPS Performance Benchmarking Report as at 
31 March 2022.  

81. ANNUAL REPORT OF THE PENSION BOARD FOR 2021/22 

The Committee received the Pension Board Annual Report and were advised that 
the Board now had a full quota of members.  

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

Resolved

The Committee noted the Pension Board Annual Report for 2021-22, which 
would be included in the Funds Annual Report 2021-22.

82. PENSION FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021/22 

The Head of Pensions advised the Committee that the report provided the 
opportunity to consider the draft year-end financial statements of the 
Gloucestershire Pension Fund. It was explained once the audit had concluded they 
would be presented to the Audit Committee for approval as part of Gloucestershire 
County Council's Accounts.  

Members were advised that the audit findings report would be circulated via email 
for information, once the audit had completed.  It was noted that the Pension Fund 
Annual Report would be published on or before the 1st December, the Committee 
noted the process for the approval of GCC Accounts and the publication of the 
Pension Fund Annual Report.  

In response to a question, it was explained there was a national shortage of 
auditors given the commercial demand and the approval of the accounts had been 
moved to the end of November to take account of the delays.

In response to a question relating to the decrease in the total employer 
contributions, members were advised that some employers as part of the previous 
valuation had opted to prepay some of their secondary contributions to receive a 
discount, as the Fund would have those assets to invest for a longer period .  

Resolved 

That the Committee recommended the Fund's financial statements for 2021-
22 to the Audit Committee for approval as part of GCC's overall financial 
statements, whilst noting the audit findings report would be presented at or 
before the meeting.

83. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

Resolved 

That in accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following agenda items, 
because it is likely that if members of the public were present there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 
of Schedule 12 A to the Act and the public interest in withholding the 
information outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information to the 
public.

84. PENSION COMMITTEE EXEMPT MINUTES 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

The exempt minutes of the meeting held on 16th June 2022 were agreed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman.

85. PENSION BOARD DRAFT EXEMPT MINUTES 

Resolved

The Committee received the draft notes of the Pension Board held on the 21st 
July 2022.

86. 2022 VALUATION RESULTS 

The Committee received a detailed presentation on the actuarial valuation results 
from Julie West, Hymans.  

Resolved 

That the Committee approved the report recommendation 

87. INVESTMENT ADVISORS QUARTERLY REPORT AND STRATEGY ASSET 
ALLOCATION REVIEW 

The Independent Advisor presented the report in detail and advised members of the 
Fund Asset Allocation and investment performance for the quarter ending 30 June 
2022.   

Resolved 

That the Committee noted the report.

88. GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND UPDATE - PART 2 

 The Head of Pensions presented the report in conjunction with the Independent 
Adviser and explained that the report was designed to be read in conjunction with 
the Part 1 report, which provided more detailed analysis and commentary on the 
Fund’s asset allocation, investment performance for the quarter ending 30 June 
2022.  

 Resolved 

That the Committee noted the detailed performance reports for the quarter 
ending 30 June 2022 and the employer, Brunel and future investment 
activities of the Fund.

CHAIRMAN

Meeting concluded at 1.02 pm

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

PENSION BOARD
MINUTES of the meeting of the Pension Board held on Thursday 20 October 2022 
commencing at 10.00 am at the Virtual Meeting - Web ex meeting.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

John Abbott
Annette Benson
Sean Collins

Cllr Stephen Hirst
Michael Hunt
Jon Topping
Colin Williams 

32. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Colin Williams declared he was a member of the lower drainage board.

33. PENSION BOARD MINUTES 

Resolved 

The Board agreed the minutes of the previous meeting held on the 21st July 
2022.

34. PENSION COMMITTEE DRAFT MINUTES 

Resolved 

The Board noted the Pension Committee draft minutes of the meeting held on 
the 23rd September 2022.  

35. GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND QUARTERLY UPDATE - PART 1 

The Head of Pensions presented the report which summarised the Fund’s funding 
position, market value, asset allocation, investment performance for the quarter 
ending 30 June 2022.

Members noted that by the end of the quarter to 30 June 2022, the Fund’s total 
market value had decreased by £181.909m, to £2,924.184m and over the quarter, 
total Fund assets produced a negative return of -5.9%, compared to a target of -
5.4%, underperforming the strategic benchmark by 0.5%. It was reported that 
performance over the 3 years to 30 June 2022 was 4.7% annualised slightly behind 
the benchmark by 0.6%.  Despite the decrease the fund was still regarded to be in 
a healthy position.  

The Board were advised that the Government had launched their consultation on 
Governance and Reporting of climate risks, which followed the Taskforce for 
Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) framework, which would require 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

administering authorities to consider and report against the four key areas of 
governance, strategy, risk management and targets.  Members were advised that a 
training day on the 15th November would be held at the before the consultation 
deadline to allow the fund to respond. 

The Head of Pensions informed Board that the Administration Key Performance 
Indicator's (KPI's) had been impacted by the triennial valuation which had taken up 
considerable time and resources.  However, as the triennial valuation was a critical 
part of governance process and given the efforts of the team, they were ahead of 
the timetable and were working with all employers of the fund.  It was noted here 
were no breaches of the statutory requirements.    

The Head of Pensions explained that two new Pensions Officers had been 
appointed and would be in post in the near future. There were another 4 Pension 
Officer posts to be recruited to.  In addition, the recruitment process for a new 
Pension Administration Manager was underway, which would build more resilience 
into the team as a whole.  The Board were informed that recruiting across the entire 
LGPS sector remained a challenge as the volume of membership increased as did 
the complexities of members circumstances.

He advised the Board that the issues could not be immediately resolved just by 
appointing new staff as it would take 6 to 12 months for these additional resources 
being in a position to aide improvement due to the training and upskilling required.  
He had already commissioned Hymans to assist in the training plan for new recruits 
as well as support staff, in order to repair the long term issues.  

The Board were informed that the Committee had debated the KPI's and as a result 
they had asked for a report and action plan on appropriate and effective KPI's.  
They also requested to know what the fund was required to benchmark against, as 
they were concerned some of the targets were unrealistic.  The Board reiterated 
these concerns and requested a copy of the report when it was available.

The Head of Pensions explained that he was liaising with the other South West 
Funds in terms of what other LGPS were tracking in order to benchmark effectively.  
He added once the new Administration Manager had been appointed, he hoped 
their views would be aligned.   

During the discussion, it was requested that the executive summary table be 
expanded to include the preceding three monthly figures.  The Head of Pensions 
agreed to take up the request with the actuary.  

Members felt that data integrity and process improvements should also be 
considered, as they remarked this was reflected in the results.  It was explained that 
data integrity was of paramount importance and the quality of data received from 
some employers had been poor possibly due to the impact of Covid.  It was noted 
this in turn had caused more work for the Pensions Team.  The Head of Pensions 
advised members that he was looking at implementing I-Connect as a long term 
solution.  

Page 10



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

The Board were advised that the external audit findings report had been delayed 
and the report would be circulated as soon as it was available.  The Fund was on 
target to publish the Annual Report on the 1st December 2022.  

Resolved 

That the Board noted the funding and investment position and governance 
activities as at 30 June 2022.   

36. RISK REGISTER 

The Head of Pensions explained that in accordance with the Risk Management 
policy agreed by Committee on 3 December 2021, progress and activity in 
managing risks would be monitored and recorded on a risk register and key 
information would be provided on a quarterly basis to the Pension Committee and 
the Pension Board, as part of the regular update reports on governance, 
investments and funding, and administration and communications.  

The Board were advised that there were no major changes since the previous 
review and a number of risks remained elevated at this time.  

Resolved 

That the Board noted the risk register and the current elevated risks as 
outlined in the report.  

37. GOVERNANCE POLICY & COMPLIANCE STATEMENT 

The Head of Pensions presented the report and advised the LGPS Regulations 
2013 required the administering authority to measure their governance 
arrangements against the standards set out in the statutory guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government.  

Members were pleased to note the governance statement review had concluded 
that the fund was fully compliant with the guidance in the applicable areas.    

Resolved 

That the Board acknowledged the approved the Governance Policy and 
Compliance Statement.  

38. PENSION FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2021/22 

The Head of Pensions advised the Board that the report provided the opportunity to 
consider the draft year-end financial statements of the Gloucestershire Pension 
Fund. It was explained once the audit had concluded they would be presented to 
the Audit Committee for approval as part of Gloucestershire County Council's 
Accounts.  

Page 11



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

Members were advised that the audit findings report would be circulated via email 
for information, once the audit had completed.  It was noted that the Pension Fund 
Annual Report would be published on or before the 1st December, the Board noted 
the process for the approval of GCC Accounts and the publication of the Pension 
Fund Annual Report.  

During the discussion, it was explained there was a national shortage of auditors 
given the commercial demand and the approval of the accounts had been moved to 
the end of November to take account of the delays.  In response to a question, it 
was noted that the PSAA appointed the external auditors.  

The Chairman asked what the implications were for the 10.1% CPI, the Head of 
Pensions explained it was unknown at this stage and some modelling work would 
be undertaken in due course and the findings would be presented to the December 
Pension Committee meeting and brought to the next Board meeting.  

Resolved 

That the Board noted the Fund's financial statements for 2021-22 issued to 
the Audit Committee for approval as part of GCC's overall financial 
statements.

39. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

Resolved

That in accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following agenda items, 
because it is likely that if members of the public were present there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 
of Schedule 12 A to the Act and the public interest in withholding the 
information outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information to the 
public.

40. PENSION BOARD EXEMPT MINUTES 

Resolved 

The Board agreed the exempt minutes of the previous meeting held on the 
21st July 2022.

41. PENSION COMMITTEE DRAFT EXEMPT MINUTES 

Resolved 

The Board noted the Pension Committee draft exempt minutes of the meeting 
held on the 23rd September 2022.

42. 2022 VALUATION RESULTS 

Page 12



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

The Board received a detailed presentation on the actuarial valuation results from 
Viktoria Bachtler, Hymans.  

Resolved 

The Board noted the report recommendation 

43. GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND QUARTERLY UPDATE - PART 2 

The Head of Pensions presented the report and explained that the report was 
designed to be read in conjunction with the Part 1 report, which provided more 
detailed analysis and commentary on the Fund’s asset allocation, investment 
performance for the quarter ending 30 June 2022.  

 Resolved 

The Board noted the detailed performance reports for the quarter ending 30 
June 2022 and the employer, Brunel and future investment activities of the 
Fund.

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 11.50 am

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Agenda Item 7 

 

Pension Committee 
8 December 2022 

 

Gloucestershire Pension Fund update – Part 1 
Quarter ending 30 September 2022 

 
Report of the Head of Pensions 

 

Summary 
 

This report provides a summary of the Fund’s funding position, market value, asset 
allocation, investment performance for the quarter ending 30 September 2022.  

 

Administering authorities, under the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management 
and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 must keep under review the performance of 
their investment managers. This report fulfils this requirement. 

 

This report also provides a summary of the Funds administration performance and  
activities up to the same period. 

 

 

Funding position 
The below information is to provide an update on the funding position at 30 September 
2022.  

 
 
 
 
 

*likelihood of the Fund’s portfolio achieving these returns over the next 20 years 

Reported funding position 31 March 2022 30 September 2022 

Assets (£m) 3,111 2,887 

Past service liabilities (£m) 2,826 2,021 

Surplus/(Deficit) (£m) 285 866 

     

Funding level 110% 143% 

Assumed future investment return (% p.a.) 4.2% 6.1% 

Likelihood of achieving this return* 75% 75% 

Fully funded target 31 March 2022 30 September 2022 

Funding target 100% 100% 

Future investment return required to be 
100% funded (% p.a.) 

3.7% 4.1% 

Likelihood of achieving this return* 82% 91% 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



 

Agenda Item 7 

 

 

This funding assessment has been carried out at an effective date of 30 September 2022, at 
which time significant volatility in investment markets was being observed. The effect of this 
market volatility may have been to distort the funding position. Specifically, market volatility 
means that asset and liability values can vary significantly between successive days. As a 
result of this volatility, the actual funding position today, and at the next reporting date, 
may differ significantly to that shown in these results.   
 
The assumptions underlying this funding assessment have been set based on the proposed 
Funding Strategy Statement, updated for market conditions on 30 September 2022.  No 
adjustment to the assumptions has been made in response to the significant market 
volatility. 
 
The value of the liabilities on 30 September 2022 do not recognise the expected 2023 
Pension Increase Order of 10.1%. The 2023 Pension Increase order will be set by 
Government and is typically set with reference to the change in CPI over the 12 months to 
the previous September. This was confirmed to be 10.1% and we await confirmation from 
Government that a 10.1% Pension Increase order will apply in 2023.  
 
If the liabilities on 30 September 2022 included allowance for a 2023 Pension Increase Order 
of 10.1%, this would lead to a c5-6% increase in the value of the liabilities. 
 
This also represents a whole fund figure and the funding positions of individual employers 
will vary. 
 

 

Fund Investment Performance 
 

Over the quarter to 30 September 2022, the Fund’s total market value decreased by 
£36.7m, to £2,887.5m.  
 
Over the quarter, total Fund assets produced a negative return of -1.3%, compared to a 
target of -2.0%, outperforming the strategic benchmark by 0.7%. 
 
Performance over the 3 years to 30 September 2022 was 3.6% annualised which was on 
benchmark. The new look version of the performance report is attached as Appendix 1 to 
this report. 
 
Investment Strategy and Activities 
 
During the Quarter the following investment activity took place: 

• During the quarter there has been a number of calls into the alternative asset classes of 
circa £28m in GBP terms and circa £9m in GBP terms into property, resulting in the Fund 
moving more towards its target allocation to alternatives and property. 

 
 
 
 

Page 16



 

Agenda Item 7 

 

The current Strategic Asset Allocation is as follows: 

Asset Class 
 

Target 
Allocation 

% 

Range 
+/- % 

Allocation as 
at 30 

September 
2022 

% 

Variation from 
Target 

% 

Equities 55.0 3.0 55.9 +0.9 

Fixed Interest 22.0 2.0 16.7 -5.3 

Alternatives* 23.0 2.0 27.4 +4.4 

 
A detailed Strategic Asset Allocation report is attached as Appendix 2 to this report. 
 

 

Responsible Investment update 
 
On 1 September, the UK Government launched their consultation on Governance and  
Reporting of climate risks. The consultation had a closing date of 24 November 2022. The 
relevant regulations are expected to be in force by April 2023 with our first report due by 
December 2024 covering the 2023/24 scheme year. 
 
The formal response, which is provided at appendix 3 to this report, from the Pensions 
Committee was submitted by the Chair of the Committee after a period of consultation with 
all Committee members.  
 
The Fund, on 15 November, held a workshop day, which included members of the Committee 
and the Pensions Board. The focus for the day was to debate the importance of responsible 
investment (RI) set within the context of the statutory responsibilities of the Pension 
Committee to protect the interest of the Pension Fund members and to understand how RI 
can be implemented within the context of investment pooling. 
 
The outcomes from the workshop will assist in the further defining of the investment and RI 
beliefs of the Committee, which will feed into an RI policy and future updates to the 
Investment Strategy Statement and Communications Policy of the Fund, The output activities 
will be incorporated into the future Business Plan of the Fund, which is subject to approval of 
the Committee.  
 

 
Fund Administration 
 
The focus of the Administration Team over the majority of the quarter to 30 September has 
been the finalisation of the validation of the membership data for the year ending March 
2022. The accuracy of the data is paramount in the valuation process and to produce the 
Annual Benefit Statements (ABS).   
 
Annual Benefit Statements were issued slightly ahead of the statutory deadline as this 
coincided with a postal dispute so we wanted to ensure delivery by the 31 August. 
 

Page 17

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/local-government-pension-scheme-england-and-wales-governance-and-reporting-of-climate-change-risks/local-government-pension-scheme-england-and-wales-governance-and-reporting-of-climate-change-risks


 

Agenda Item 7 

 

As is always the case the receipt of the ABS does cause a substantial increase in telephone 
and email enquiries from the members in the initial 2 weeks of receipt of the statements. This 
normally also sees a increase in retirement estimate requests at the same time.    
 
The team have now fully implementing agile working, as per GCC guidelines, which will see 
greater flexibility across the team, but will result in a major change to the overall teams 
working behaviours. The main objective of the Fund, to pay the right benefits, to the right 
person at the right time.  
 
The volume of casework continues in increase. We have had to embed new Transfer Out 
requirements, which now require more due diligence checks to be undertaken by the team 
before payment can be made. We are addressing this through the increasing the resources 
within the team as set out below. 
 
The focus remains for the team to provide an equal service to all members of the Fund, which 
is demonstrated by the average days taken in all cases v the average day taken in cases that 
exceed the target, and I can advise that all payments are being made within statutory 
timeframes in accordance with the regulations. 
 
The current performance indicators, which are attached as appendix 4 to this report have 
improved in the key deliverable areas since the previous quarter, which reflects that the 
activity of year end and ABS has been completed. 
 
At the Committee meeting in September 2022, Committee expressed concern that the KPIs 
had not been achieved in the majority of the indicators for a long period and requested that 
the Head of Pensions undertake a review in this area. 
 
As part of the governance work plan, agreed by Committee in June 2021, one of the activities 
to be undertaken was a review of the Funds Administration Strategy, which also includes the 
reportable KPIs. 
 
In response to the concerns raised by Committee, the review of the administration strategy 
and in particular the reportable KPIs,  has now been escalated, and together with AON, who 
are assisting in the delivery of the governance workplan, a fundamental review of the 
administration strategy has been commenced. I attach a scope of the review that will be 
undertaken as appendix 5 to this report. Any other areas identified and agreed by Committee 
can be included in the scope, if required.  
 
The scope of the work will cover the following areas: 

• Processes 

• Performance standards 

• KPIs 

• Resources and structure 
 
Attached as appendix 5 to this report is the scope of the activity that will be undertaken as 
part of the review and contains an indicative timetable, that schedules delivery of the 
outcome report for the June 2023 meeting.  

Page 18



 

Agenda Item 7 

 

 
 
 
Staffing update 
 
I am pleased to advise that further Shaun Comer and Stacy Ridler have now joined the team 
on 3 October and 10 October respectively as new Pensions Officers 
 
After another readvertisement of the remaining 4 x Pensions Officer vacancies, we were able 
to successfully appointed another 2 members of the team in Liam Wild, who joined on 21 
November and Clare Barson who has yet to complete all the required checks to enable her to 
commence with the team. 
 
Unfortunately, we have also received a resignation from Katie Baker, Pensions Officer in the 
team, who is going to travel around Australia and is leaving us at the end of November. 
 
We have readvertised again with a view to recruiting to the 3 remaining Pension Officer 
vacancies. The application for this closes on 16 December, with interviews scheduled for early 
January 2023. 
 
As previously advised the Funds Pension Administration Manager, Alan Marshall applied for 
and has been granted flexible retirement, which will come into effect from 1 November 2022 
and Alan has moved into a Pension Group Leader role within the team. 
 
The recruitment of a replacement Pensions Administration Manager has been undertaken 
and an offer to a candidate has been made. The candidate has accepted the offer, which is 
still subject to required checks and references at the time of preparing this report. Once 
everything has been finalised, we will circulate a short biography of the successful candidate 
to Committee. It is anticipated that they should commence the role around March 2023. 
 
I am pleased to advise that Nigel Gabb, who will be known to many members of the 
Committee moved into his role as Pension Investment & Accounting Manager on 14 
November. 
 
Recruitment remains a challenging area across the entire LGPS and there are a vast number 
of Funds actively recruiting at this time in both administration and investment arenas and as 
the volume of membership continues to increase, as do the complexities of peoples 
circumstances, therefore, to ensure that we are able to deliver the ongoing level of service 
required we will need to undertake a review of all our processes to see how we can improve 
them either with efficiencies or with the implementation of IT systems. Alongside this, we will 
also be undertaking a review of the administration strategy and the performance indicators, 
that were previous reviewed in 2017 to see if they remain appropriate, this activity is built 
part of 2022/23 business plan alongside other key projects such as the Pensions Dashboard 
and McCloud. 
 
The onboarding on new members of the team, either existing team members in new roles or 
completely new members into the team, can create an additional burden onto existing 

Page 19



 

Agenda Item 7 

 

resources, therefore, we have taken the following steps to help mitigate this impact. 
 

1. Hymans have been retained to provide a help desk facility for senior members of the 
team to seek technical guidance on complex case work, thereby alleviating the 
continual burden on internal knowledgeable persons and creating more resilience. 

2. Hymans will be providing a programme of high-level administrator training sessions 
to new and existing team member, via multiple streams (such as in person and 
online) on the key elements that go into administering the scheme. This will help in 
delivering a comprehensive training plan to upskill the new role holders as quickly 
and efficiently as possible. The rest of the training will be delivered by existing team 
members in a face to face mentoring programme. 

3. We have currently offered voluntary overtime to the existing team, of which 3 
members have taken up the offer, and we are monitoring this to ensure it does not 
have a detrimental impact on the individual. 

 
Further recruitment of the additional resources will be undertaken through the remainder of 
the Fund year to ensure we balance the requirements of delivery and staff onboarding and 
upskilling, which in the nature of the work that is undertaken can take up to 3 to 6 months 
for the staff member to become effective. In the meantime, we as a team remain focussed 
on paying the right benefits, to the right people at the right time, adapting where possible 
and ensuring we strive to deliver an equal service to all members. 
 
 

Business Plan 2022/23 
 

The following is a summary, together with commentary of the amber key tasks from the 

work plan agreed as part of the business plan for 2022/23.  

A detailed report against all items is attached as Appendix 6 to this report 

Governance 

Task 2021/22 2022/23 

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Annual review against The 

Pensions Regulators Code of 

Practise 

✓ - on the 

2022/23 

business 

plan 

    

Approval of audited Fund 

accounts 

  ✓ - draft 

accounts 

provided. 

Audit 

ongoing 

✓ - Audit 

opinion on 

agenda.   

 

 

 

Core projects tracking from 2022/23 business plan 

Page 20



 

Agenda Item 7 

 

Below is a brief tracking of the core projects identified in the 2022/23 business case. Further updates 

are provided in Appendix 6 to this report 

1) 2022 Actuarial valuation 

and associated tasks 

On track and operating to schedule  

2) Review pensions 

administration system 

contract  

On schedule – project planning in phase  

3) Pensions Dashboard 

(including a Data 

Improvement Strategy) 

Commenced and on track with initial data check  

4) McCloud  Awaiting guidance  

 

Governance Review 
 

A detailed report on the tasks from the work plan agreed by Committee in September 2021 

is attached as Appendix 7 to this report. 

With the revised timeline agreed by Committee at its meeting in June 2022 on certain tasks 

there are currently no amber items and the workplan is tracking to schedule. 

The following activities have commenced in the previous quarter as a result of the workshop 

held in November 2022 and in response to the Committees concerns raised in relation to 

the current performance indicators. 

Action  Reason  
 

Timescale
s  

 

Current 
action/comment 

Review the Fund's  
Communications Policy  

We understand that a 
review was due to be 
undertaken in  
2019/20 but this did not 
take place  

Commenced  Initial work was commenced 
with Committee/Board 
workshop event held in 
November 2022 

Review the Fund's  
Administration Strategy  

Last reviewed in 2017  Commenced Review has commenced with 
scope looking at 
processes/resources/IT and 
KPI’s 

Review the Fund's Investment  
Strategy Statement  

Our report suggested some 
potential enhancements to 
the current policy in 
relation to Responsible 
Investment.  

As per Fund's 
business plan  

SAA review undertaken and 
ISS on agenda for approval in 
December 2022. 
Development of Responsible 
Investment Policy 
commenced with workshop 
event held in November 
2022. 

 

Page 21



 

Agenda Item 7 

 

LGPS National Knowledge Assessment 

In accordance with the Funds approved training policy and training plan we partook in the 

the 2022 National Knowledge Assessment (NKA). Five Committee members and five Board 

members have completed the assessment, which has now closed and we are awaiting the 

results. The results will be brought back to the next available Committee and Board 

meetings.   

The assessment will provide the Fund with a benchmark of current knowledge levels against 

other LGPS funds' Committee and Boards and will can track against the previous knowledge 

and skills assessment that was undertook in 2021 to see if the training opportunities that 

has been provided has been effective. The results will also be used to inform the future 

training plan for Committee and Board members. 

 

Pension Fund Audit 2021/22 
 
At its meeting in June 2022, Committee received and noted the Audit Plan, in relation to the 
audit to be undertaken by Grant Thornton on the Fund for 2021/22. This was followed by the 
draft Statement of Accounts in relation to the Fund which were provided to Committee at its 
September 2022 meeting. 
 
I am now please to attach, as appendix 8, the Audit Findings Report (AFR) received from Grant 
Thornton, in respect of the audit on the Fund for 2021/22. 
 
Headlines  
Grant Thorntons audit work was completed remotely during July  October. Grant Thornton 
identified two adjustments to the financial statements that have resulted in a £15.4m 
adjustment to the Pension Fund's reported financial position. Audit adjustments are detailed 
in Appendix C of the AFR. Grant Thornton have also raised recommendations for management 
as a result of their audit work in Appendix A of the AFR. Grant Thorntons follow up of 
recommendations from the prior year's audit are detailed in Appendix B of the AFR. 
 
Conclusion 
Grant Thorntons have substantially completed the audit of the Funds financial statements 
and subject to outstanding queries being resolved, they anticipate issuing an unqualified audit 
opinion following the Audit and Governance Committee meeting on 30 November 2022, as 
detailed in Appendix E of the AFR. The outstanding items include: 
 

• receipt of management representation letter; 

• completion of one sample test for Benefits paid;  

• receipt and review of the final Annual Report; and  

• review of the final set of financial statements. 
 
Management have provided responses to the recommendations raised in the AFR at appendix 
A, and, as appropriate to the audit adjustments detailed in Appendix C of the AFR. 
 

Page 22



 

Agenda Item 7 

 

 
 
 
Pension Fund Annual Report 2021/22 
 
Summary 
The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 requires administering authorities 
to prepare a Pension Fund Annual Report and specify what it should contain. Principally, the 
regulations and government guidance require that the Annual Report should include 
reference to the following documents: 
 

• the management and financial performance during the year;  

• the Fund’s investment policy and a review of the performance of the Fund’s assets;  

• administration arrangements;  

• a statement by the Funds Actuary of the level of funding disclosed by the most recent 
valuation and the assets and liabilities of the Fund;  

• the Fund Accounts and Net Asset Statement and supporting notes and disclosures in 
accordance with proper practices;  

• progress on investment pooling including the costs and savings resulting from the 
initiative;  

• the current approved versions of: ▪ Governance Compliance & Policy Statements  
o Funding Strategy Statement; 
o Investment Strategy Statement; 
o Communications Strategy  

 
Please note that the Funds Annual Report can only be published once the Council’s Statement 
of Accounts has been approved, as the Pension Fund accounts form part of the Council’s 
Statement of Accounts. 
 
The regulations also require the Annual Report to be published on or before 1st December 
following the year end. It is anticipated that the Councils Statement of Accounts will not be 
approved before the 1st December, therefore, as with previous years, the Fund will publish 
the Annual Report in draft on 1st December, but will make reference to the completion of the 
audit of the Pension Fund accounts. Once the Councils Statement of Accounts has been 
approved the final Annual Report will be republished.    
 
Due to the size of the Pension Fund Annual Report for 2021/22, the draft report will be issued 
to Committee via separate email and not form part of their agenda packs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



 

Agenda Item 7 

 

 
 
Recommendations 

1) That the Committee acknowledge the funding, investment position and governance 
activities as at 30 September 2022. 

2) That Committee acknowledge the Audit Findings Report provided by Grant Thornton 
for year to 31 March 2022. 

3) That the Committee notes the Annual Report for 2021/22, which has been published 
on or before the 1 December. 

 

Contact Officer 
 
Matthew Trebilcock – Head of Pensions (01452 328920) 

Page 24



Gloucestershire County Council

Performance Report
Quarter ending 30 September 2022

P
age 25



Contents

Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Summary 3

Pension Fund performance 3

Asset summary 4

Overview of assets 5

Performance attribution 6

Pension Fund performance attribution 6

Responsible investment 8

Risk and return 9

Risk and return summary 10

Portfolio overview 11

CIO commentary 14

Portfolios 16

Listed markets 16

Private markets 31

Property 38

Glossary 40

Bookmarks

Summary|3|1

Pension Fund performance|3|2

|0|3

|0|2

|0|3

|0|1

Overview of assets|5|2

|0|3

Performance attribution|7|1

Pension Fund performance attribution|7|2

|0|3

Responsible investment|8|1

|0|2

|0|3

Risk and return|9|1

|0|2

|0|3

Risk and return summary|10|1

|0|2

|0|3

Portfolio overview|11|1

|0|2

|0|3

CIO commentary|15|1

|0|2

|0|3

Portfolios|16|1

Listed markets|16|2

Global High Alpha Equities|16|3

Global Sustainable Equities|18|3

UK Active Equities|20|3

Emerging Markets Equities|22|3

Diversifying Returns Fund|24|3

Multi-Asset Credit|25|3

Sterling Corporate Bonds|26|3

PAB Passive Global Equities|27|3

Passive Developed Equities (Hedged)|29|3

Private markets|31|2

Private Equity Cycle 1|31|3

Private Equity Cycle 2|32|3

Private Debt Cycle 2|33|3

Infrastructure Cycle 1|34|3

Infrastructure (General) Cycle 2|35|3

Infrastructure (Renewables) Cycle 2|37|3

Property|38|2

UK Property|38|3

International Property|39|3

Glossary|40|1

|0|2

|0|3

P
age 26



Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures

Classification: Public

Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

S

Pension Fund performance

Performance (annualised) Quarterly performance

-1.3

-7.1 -7.0

3.6
4.6

8.0
7.0

-2.0

-7.3

-4.9

3.6

5.0

8.0 7.5

-10.0

-5.0

0.0

5.0

10.0

R
e

tu
rn

 %

3 month Fiscal YTD 1 year 3 years 

(p.a.)*

5 years 

(p.a.)*

10 years 

(p.a.)*

Since 

inception  
(p.a.)*

Total portfolio Total fund benchmark

-10.0

-5.0

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

To
ta

l f
u

n
d

 %

Q4 2020 Q1 2021 Q2 2021 Q3 2021 Q4 2021 Q1 2022 Q2 2022 Q3 2022

Fund Benchmark Total portfolio Total fund benchmark

The third quarter saw continued volatility, with equity markets enjoying a strong initial rebound

before giving up those gains by quarter-end. Bond markets were generally weak as both higher

interest rates and expectations of further rate rises weighed heavily on sentiment.

The total fund declined by 1.3% over the quarter, outperforming the benchmark, which fell by

2.0%. Across the first three quarters of 2022, the fund was slightly ahead of the benchmark, but

still down 7.1% in absolute terms.

Equity funds had a mixed quarter, with Global funds rising. However, the Emerging Markets

Equities portfolio was down, in part due to a weakening outlook for China. The UK Active
portfolio was also lower, given the volatility in the UK market. This also weighed heavily on the

Sterling Corporate Bonds portfolio.

Source: State Street Global Services

*per annum

Source: State Street Global Services

Key events

3

P
age 27



Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Asset summary

Key:

Equities 56.07%

Fixed Income 16.67%

Property 10.33%

Private Markets 8.71%

Other 7.78%

Cash 0.44%

Source: State Street Global Services

Source: State Street Global Services

Data includes legacy assets

Asset allocation breakdown

Transitioned 97.12%

Legacy assets 2.88%

Q3 2022

GBP2,887.5m

Transitioned 96.95%

Legacy assets 3.05%

Q2 2022

GBP2,924.2m

Assets transitioned to Brunel

4

P
age 28



Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

BCA

Overview of assets

Detailed asset allocation

Equities 56.07%

Emerging Markets Equities 5.61%

Global High Alpha Equities 12.94%

Global Sustainable Equities 11.48%

PAB Passive Global Equities 9.86%

Passive Developed Equities (Hedged) 3.23%

UK Active Equities 12.81%

Legacy Assets 0.13%

Fixed income 16.67%

Multi-Asset Credit 6.30%

Sterling Corporate Bonds 10.37%

Private markets (incl. property) 19.05%

Infrastructure (General) Cycle 2 1.14%

Infrastructure (Renewables) Cycle 2 0.69%

Infrastructure Cycle 1 1.12%

International Property 1.90%

Private Debt Cycle 2 1.62%

Private Equity Cycle 1 1.15%

Private Equity Cycle 2 0.68%

UK Property 8.43%

Legacy Assets 2.31%

Other 7.78%

Diversifying Returns Fund 7.78%

Cash not included

5

P
age 29



Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Performance attribution
Pension fund performance attribution - to quarter end

PA

End market value

£'000

Actual % allocation

at end of quarter

Strategic asset

allocation (%)
Difference (%) Fund return (%) Contribution to return

Diversifying Returns Fund 224,534 7.8% 0.0% 7.8% -0.1%-1.0%

Emerging Markets Equities 162,094 5.6% 6.5% -0.9% -0.3%-4.8%

Global High Alpha Equities 373,547 12.9% 13.5% -0.6% 0.2%1.8%

Global Sustainable Equities 331,605 11.5% 13.0% -1.5% 0.2%1.9%

Infrastructure Cycle 1 32,375 1.1% - 1.1% 0.1%7.5%

International Property 54,933 1.9% 2.5% -0.6% 0.1%9.2%

Multi-Asset Credit 181,857 6.3% 7.5% -1.2% -0.1%-0.9%

Private Debt Cycle 2 46,784 1.6% - 1.6% 0.1%10.5%

Private Equity Cycle 1 33,132 1.1% - 1.1% 0.1%6.5%

Private Equity Cycle 2 19,769 0.7% - 0.7% --5.3%

Sterling Corporate Bonds 299,365 10.4% 14.5% -4.1% -1.2%-11.1%

UK Active Equities 369,875 12.8% 12.0% 0.8% -0.4%-3.2%

UK Property 243,475 8.4% 7.5% 0.9% -0.2%-2.2%

PAB Passive Global Equities 284,684 9.9% 10.0% -0.1% 0.1%1.8%

Passive Developed Equities (Hedged) 93,297 3.2% -3.2% -0.1%-4.9%

Infrastructure (Renewables) Cycle 2 19,915 0.7% - 0.7% -6.7%

6

-

P
age 30



Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Performance attribution
Pension fund performance attribution - to quarter end

End market value

£'000

Actual % allocation

at end of quarter

Strategic asset

allocation (%)
Difference (%) Fund return (%) Contribution to return

Infrastructure (General) Cycle 2 33,046 1.1% - 1.1% --0.1%

Bluebay 19,751 0.7% - 0.7% -0.3%

Brunel PM Cash 8,050 0.3% - 0.3% -0.1%

Golub 38,782 1.3% - 1.3% 0.1%8.7%

Yorkshire Fund Managers 3,842 0.1% - 0.1% --0.3%

Cash 10,717 0.4% - 0.4% -0.1%

7

P
age 31



Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

-60%

-40%

-20%

0%

2021 Q4 2022 Q1 2022 Q2 2022 Q3

Global High Alpha
Equities

Global Sustainable
Equities

UK Active Equities

Emerging Markets
Equities

PAB Passive Global
Equities

Climate metrics and stewardship

RIS

2022 Q2 2022 Q3

Portfolio
WACI

93 86Global High Alpha Equities

197 180MSCI World*

165 148Global Sustainable Equities

225 207MSCI ACWI*

95 92UK Active Equities

170 165FTSE All Share ex Inv Tr*

237 176Emerging Markets Equities

432 416MSCI Emerging Markets*

114 103PAB Passive Global Equities

198 180FTSE Dev World TR UKPD*

245 256
Passive Developed Equities

(Hedged)

- -FTSE Developed*

2022 Q2 2022 Q3

Extractives revenues¹

0.9 0.9

2.7 2.6

2.5 2.5

2.7 2.6

3.0 3.3

4.1 4.2

0.8 0.8

3.2 3.2

1.0 1.0

2.6 2.5

2.7 2.6

- -

2022 Q2 2022 Q3

Extractives reserves²

3.1 3.1

7.0 7.1

3.3 3.0

7.0 7.2

14.8 16.5

19.6 21.7

5.1 5.2

7.2 7.7

1.6 1.6

6.9 7.0

6.6 6.6

- -

*Benchmark. ¹ Extractive revenue exposure as share (%) of total revenue. ² Value of holdings (VOH)

- companies who derive revenues from extractives. Source: Trucost

Weighted Average Carbon Intensity

relative to benchmark

Stewardship reporting links

Engagement records

www.brunelpensionpartnership.org/stewardship/engagement-records/

Holdings records

www.brunelpensionpartnership.org/stewardship/holdings-records/

Voting records

www.brunelpensionpartnership.org/stewardship/voting-records/

8

P
age 32



Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Risk and return summary

Brunel portfolio performance - 3 year

RRS

Annualised

return

Risk

(Standard

Deviation)

Benchmark

return

Benchmark

Standard

Deviation

UK Active Equities -0.8% 17.2% 0.5% 16.2%

Passive Developed Equities (Hedged) 5.1% 18.6% 5.2% 18.6%

Private Equity Cycle 1 18.1% 14.3% 7.7% 14.6%

Infrastructure Cycle 1 9.0% 6.1% 4.5% 1.8%

Since portfolio inception

9

P
age 33



Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Risk and return summary

Legacy manager performance - 3 year

RRS

Annualised

return

Risk

(Standard

Deviation)

Benchmark

return

Benchmark

Standard

Deviation

Bluebay 5.0% 4.1% 5.5% 0.1%

Golub 12.3% 11.5% 5.5% 0.1%

Gloucestershire County Council 3.6% 10.9% 3.6% 9.8%

10

P
age 34



Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Portfolio overview

*Since initial investment

PO

Portfolio Benchmark
Outperformance

target

AUM

(GBPm)

Perf.

3 month

Excess

3 month

Perf.

1 year

Excess

1 year

Perf.

3 year

Excess

3 year

Perf.

SII*

Excess

SII*

Initial

investment

Global High Alpha Equities MSCI World 15 Nov 2019373.5 1.8% -0.3% -10.6% -8.2% - - 10.5% 1.5%+2.0-3.0%

Global Sustainable Equities MSCI ACWI 30 Sep 2020331.6 1.9% 0.4% -12.0% -8.2% - - 4.0% -4.7%+2.0%

UK Active Equities FTSE All Share ex Inv Tr 21 Nov 2018369.9 -3.2% 0.4% -8.1% -5.1% -0.8% -1.2% 1.8% -1.2%+2.0%

Emerging Markets Equities
MSCI Emerging

Markets
09 Oct 2019162.1 -4.8% -1.2% -18.1% -5.3% - - -1.1% -2.6%+2.0-3.0%

Diversifying Returns Fund SONIA +3% 27 Jul 2020224.5 -1.0% -2.2% -3.1% -6.8% - - 1.4% -2.0%0 to +2.0%

Multi-Asset Credit SONIA +4% 01 Jun 2021181.9 -0.9% -2.3% -11.5% -16.2% - - -8.2% -12.8%0 to +1.0%

Sterling Corporate Bonds iBoxx Sterling Non Gilt x 02 Jul 2021299.4 -11.1% -0.1% -22.5% -0.6% - - -19.0% -0.3%+1.0%

PAB Passive Global Equities FTSE Dev World PAB 25 Jan 2022284.7 1.8% - - - - - -4.7% -0.1%Match

Passive Developed Equities

(Hedged)
FTSE Developed 18 Jul 201893.3 -4.9% - -16.1% -0.1% 5.1% -0.1% 4.6% -0.1%Match

Private Equity Cycle 1 MSCI ACWI 26 Mar 201933.1 6.5% 5.0% 38.0% 41.7% 18.1% 10.4% 27.4% 17.2%+ 3 %

Private Equity Cycle 2 MSCI ACWI 05 Jan 202119.8 -5.3% -6.8% 21.7% 25.4% - - 52.6% 47.7%+ 3 %

Private Debt Cycle 2 SONIA 17 Sep 202146.8 10.5% 9.1% 14.3% 9.5% - - 15.4% 10.6%+ 4 %

Infrastructure Cycle 1 CPI 02 Jan 201932.4 7.5% 5.8% 17.8% 7.7% 9.0% 4.5% 6.0% 2.0%+ 4 %

Infrastructure (General) Cycle 2 CPI 19 Oct 202033.0 -0.1% -1.8% -1.6% -11.7% - - -6.0% -12.7%+ 4 %

11

P
age 35



Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Portfolio overview

*Since initial investment

Portfolio Benchmark
Outperformance

target

AUM

(GBPm)

Perf.

3 month

Excess

3 month

Perf.

1 year

Excess

1 year

Perf.

3 year

Excess

3 year

Perf.

SII*

Excess

SII*

Initial

investment

Infrastructure (Renewables) Cycle 2 CPI 12 Oct 202019.9 6.7% 5.1% 13.8% 3.7% - - 6.5% -0.1%+ 4 %

UK Property MSCI/AREF UK 01 Apr 2020243.5 -2.2% 2.1% 14.0% 3.1% - - 9.3% 1.5%+ 0.5 %

International Property GREFI 01 Apr 202054.9 9.2% -2.8% 34.5% -1.9% - - 13.2% -1.4%+ 0.5 %

12

P
age 36



Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Portfolio overview

*Since initial investment

Legacy assets

Portfolio
AUM

(GBPm)

Perf.

3 month

Excess

3 month

Perf.

1 year

Excess

1 year

Perf.

3 year

Excess

3 year

Perf.

SII*

Excess

SII*

Initial

investment

Golub 01 Jul 201738.8 8.7% 7.1% 32.6% 26.9% 12.3% 6.8% 12.0% 6.4%

Bluebay 01 Aug 201719.8 0.3% -1.3% 0.6% -5.2% 5.0% -0.6% 5.9% 0.3%

13

P
age 37



Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Chief Investment Officer commentary

CIO

At the root of recent market shifts has been investor views on the inflation outlook, associated interest rate rises, and the size of any potential recession. For months, markets have been forecasting

a 2023 recession – now even central bankers have joined them, courtesy of deteriorating economic indicators.

When economic visibility is low and volatility is high – last quarter, for example – markets can be violently whipsawed. Global markets rose 10% from their end-June lows, only to promptly sink 16%,
finishing the quarter down (in local currency terms). The cause of both moves was that investors began to believe that the Federal Reserve Bank (Fed) would in fact “pivot” – meaning pivot away

from the tightening course it began in March, and instead embark on monetary loosening. The market interpreted the Fed’s July commentary – fairly, in my view – to mean it had turned interest

rate-setting off autopilot to become more data-dependent. This caused bonds yields to fall (meaning bond prices rose) and equities to rally, as investors hoped the Fed wouldn’t continue to hike

rates into a recession without pause. (Recent data shows the US is in a technical recession.) Despite this, the Fed’s preferred measure of inflation, Core PCE, ticked up; and so it raised rates by

0.75% for the third time in a row. Furthermore, the narrative that accompanied the meeting showed the Fed’s view that controlling inflation is mission-critical for the long-term health of the

economy – as a result, risk assets and “defensive” assets like government bonds fell in unison.

Indeed, the positive correlation between equities and bonds is at all-time highs, challenging the assumptions on which many portfolios are constructed. Moreover, duration and interest rate risk

aren’t limited to just government bond portfolios; instead, interest rates are the bedrock for all asset class risk premia. In property, for example, potential buyers are now unable to use leverage;

and the re-pricing of other assets, such as Gilts, has made property expensive by comparison. Property yields are yet to adjust but the cheque is likely “in the post”.

Market-moving news flow deteriorated across the piste, adding to investor fears. China saw an increasing incidence of Covid, which prompted further lockdowns, as a broad property slump left

China the weakest major market over the quarter. The conflict in Ukraine added to fears, despite Ukrainian gains, as Putin called up Russia’s reservists, and spoke openly about the use of tactical

nuclear weapons. President Biden warned that the risk of nuclear “Armageddon” is at its highest since the Cuban missile crisis.

Closer to home, investors greeted the Conservative government’s mini-Budget by selling sterling and government bonds precipitously. Sterling, down 18% this year, hit an all-time low of $1.03,

offsetting the lion’s share of the equity market weakness for unhedged investors. UK gilts had already been declining (see Figure 1), but the decline’s acceleration in September was frightening.

Fearing systemic risk to pension funds, which held leveraged gilt positions via their Liability Driven Investment (LDI) programmes, the Bank of England stepped in with a £65bn bond-buying

programme, stabilising the market, but with credibility damaged.

Figure1 - Price history: UK gilts 30 Jun 2022 to 30 Sept 2022 - Source: Bloomberg

14

P
age 38



Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Chief Investment Officer commentary
The credit market arguably continued to fall, as both duration and widening credit spreads hurt performance. High Yield credit spreads (the additional compensation offered for default risk)

started the quarter at 6.5% and tightened to 5.4% before macro trends finally pushed them to 6.7%. Following the forced selling, the market is now pricing in close to a 10% default rate -- and

default rates peaked at only 9.95% in 2009 after the Global Financial Crisis. At this price, patient investors are being offered good levels of compensation. Driven by energy and metals, the leading

commodities index also posted a negative return – only sterling investors profited (see Figure 2).

Figure 2 - Net index performance total return during Q3 2022 - Source: Bloomberg

Within equities, the tug-of-war between Growth and Value stocks was a more even affair than of late, as the rotation from Growth stalled, in keeping with the higher interest rate environment.

Inflation now makes company characteristics likely to dominate more than broad factor exposures.

Disruption wasn’t limited to listed investments, as in the private markets arena there were reliable reports of forced selling of positions at heavily discounted prices. This had begun in March but, in

the UK, the large collateral calls associated with LDI exaggerated the trend in Q3. Discounts of 20-30% in private equity portfolios have been mooted. It serves as a reminder that it pays to invest

cautiously over time, as the greater vintages are often the most lucrative.

News may yet worsen, but the market is forward-looking. I do not believe we have seen the bottoms in equity markets, but markets always overshoot, and we have already experienced a

significant correction in all asset classes, bar the US dollar. Downdrafts can be painful, but they also enable long-term investors to take advantage of forced sales.

15

P
age 39



Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public P

Gloucestershire's Holding:

GBP374m

Global High Alpha Equities

-20.0%

-10.0%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

Q4
2020

Q1
2021

Q2
2021

Q3
2021

Q4
2021

Q1
2022

Q2
2022

Q3
2022

Fund

Benchmark

Fund cumulative

Benchmark cumulative

Rolling performanceInvestment strategy & key drivers

High conviction, unconstrained global equity portfolio

Liquidity

Managed

Benchmark

MSCI World

Outperformance target

+2.0-3.0%

Total fund value

GBP3,644m

Risk profile

High

Performance commentary

Performance to quarter end

Performance 3 month % 1 year %

Since

inception %

p.a.*

Fund 1.8 -10.5 11.4

Benchmark 2.2 -2.5 9.8

Excess -0.3 -8.1 1.5

*per annum

Global developed equities (as proxied by the MSCI World

index) returned 2.2% over the quarter in GBP terms,

outperforming emerging markets equities, where China was

particularly weak. Sentiment weakened and the market gave

up gains made earlier in the quarter when, in September, the

Fed reaffirmed that its priority was to fight against inflation,

rather than to support growth.

The portfolio returned 1.8% during the period,

underperforming the benchmark by 0.4%.

Sector attribution analysis showed sector allocation was

positive due to the overweight to Consumer Discretionary

(the best performing sector), more than offsetting the

negative impact of an underweight to Energy (the second-

best performing sector). Stock selection was negative overall,

with weakest selection in Consumer Discretionary, as some

overweight China names (Alibaba, Meituan and Nio) posted

negative returns. So, too, did Nike, which reported weaker

earnings expectations due to a rise in inventories and the

negative impact of a stronger dollar. This was despite strong

stock selection within the Materials sector: Steel Dynamics
and Reliance Steel (both overweight in the portfolio) each

had strong results on the back of elevated steel prices.

Three out of five managers outperformed the index over the

quarter, with Fiera performing in line and Harris

underperforming. Baillie Gifford was the best performer, as it

benefitted from an overweight to Consumer Discretionary

and from some of its names recovering some of the losses

suffered over previous quarters (Trade Desk and Netflix in

particular). Harris underperformed, largely as a result of

negative stock selection, with an overweight to Credit Suisse

one of the main detractors (as the bank is going through

more re-structuring after a series of governance challenges).

Style characteristics were less of a driver of underlying

manager returns this quarter compared to previous quarters.
In an environment where inflation and slowing economic

growth impact companies differently, there is potential for

individual company characteristics to once again come to

the fore in determining future returns.

From inception to quarter-end, the portfolio outperformed

the benchmark by 1.5% per annum. There were no client

trades during the quarter.

16

P
age 40



Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Global High Alpha Equities
Top 5 holdings

Market value

(GBP)*
Weight %

MICROSOFT CORP 188,254,3105.17

AMAZON.COM INC 134,077,1423.68

ALPHABET INC-CL A 111,207,9363.05

MASTERCARD INC - A 80,817,1182.22

UNITEDHEALTH GROUP INC 74,129,3322.03

Companies with lowest ESG ratings
Adjusted ESG score*

Q2 2022 Q3 2022

ABBOTT LABORATORIES 39.08-

BECTON DICKINSON AND CO 38.9940.16

META PLATFORMS INC 41.8642.21

PROGRESSIVE CORP/THE 40.1640.24

AMAZON.COM INC 50.7250.46

*Scores can range from a high score of 100 to a low of 0. The table is

ordered by negative overall ESG impact on the portfolio, with the most

impactful at the top.

Portfolio

WACI

2022

Q2

2022

Q3

Global High Alpha 93 86

MSCI World* 197 180

*Benchmark. ¹ Extractive revenue exposure as share (%) of total revenue. ²

Value of holdings (VOH) - companies who derive revenues from

extractives. Source: Trucost

Extractives

revenues¹

2022

Q2

2022

Q3

0.87 0.92

2.68 2.61

Extractives

reserves²

2022

Q2

2022

Q3

3.09 3.15

7.02 7.12

Carbon metrics

Regional exposure

0% 20% 40% 60%

Other

Pacific

Emerging Market

UK

Europe & Middle East

Americas

Fund Benchmark

Sector exposure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40%

Other

Cash

Financials

Health Care

Consumer Discretionary

Information Technology

Fund Benchmark

*Total Brunel portfolio

17

P
age 41



Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public P

Gloucestershire's Holding:

GBP332m

Global Sustainable Equities

-20.0%

-10.0%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

Q4
2020

Q1
2021

Q2
2021

Q3
2021

Q4
2021

Q1
2022

Q2
2022

Q3
2022

Fund

Benchmark

Fund cumulative

Benchmark cumulative

Rolling performanceInvestment strategy & key drivers

Global equity exposure concentrating on ESG factors

Liquidity

Managed

Benchmark

MSCI ACWI

Outperformance target

+2.0%

Total fund value

GBP3,109m

Risk profile

High

Performance commentary

Performance to quarter end

Performance 3 month % 1 year %

Since

inception %

p.a.*

Fund 1.9 -11.9 3.1

Benchmark 1.5 -3.7 7.9

Excess 0.4 -8.2 -4.7

*per annum

As per the CIO commentary, when economic visibility is low

and volatility is high, markets can be violently whipsawed.

Global equities (as proxied by the MSCI All Countries World

Index) returned 1.5% over the reporting period. The

Sustainable Equity fund returned 1.9%, outperforming the

benchmark by 0.4% (MSCI All Countries World Index).

During the first half of Q3 the portfolio returned 14.5%,

outperforming the MSCI ACWI by 3.2%. This outperformance

can be attributed to being overweight in the more growth-

orientated parts of the market. For instance, if we take

dividend yield as a proxy for Value/Growth, the top Growth

quintile returned 18.4% for this initial period, whilst the bottom

quintile returned 5.6%. The portfolio has a 11% overweight in

this top quintile, which was positive for performance. Stock

selection in Health Care and Information Technology also

significantly contributed to outperformance.

During the second half of Q3, however, market optimism

turned to pessimism and the portfolio returned -10.9%,

underperforming the MSCI ACWI by 2%. Over this period, we

saw a reversal of fortunes in terms of the Growth/Value
dynamic that played out in the first half of the reporting

period. The top Growth quartile fell 13.2%, whilst the top Value

quintile showed a relatively muted decline of 6%. In this case,

the overweight positioning to the top growth quintile had a

negative impact on relative performance.

Four of the five managers outperformed the index during the

reporting period. Ownership outperformed the MSCI ACWI by

3%. Its concentrated portfolio has the largest Growth

exposure, so it benefitted significantly through that initial rally

at the start of Q3. Mirova, on the other hand, underperformed

the MSCI ACWI. A broad sustainable manager, its stock

selection in Financials and its holdings in non-traditional banks

such as Silicon Valley bank contributed to

underperformance.

We can see from the performance profile above that interest

rates and inflationary sentiment are having a significant

impact on short-term portfolio performance. The portfolio has

a time horizon of 5-7 years and, whilst it is sometimes difficult

to ignore the short term, we are comfortable that our

managers have continued to demonstrate a philosophy that

aligns itself to striking longer-term targets.

18

P
age 42



Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Global Sustainable Equities
Top 5 holdings

Market value

(GBP)*
Weight %

MASTERCARD INC - A 76,652,1242.47

MICROSOFT CORP 73,538,9642.37

DANAHER CORP 59,266,9881.91

UNITEDHEALTH GROUP INC 58,547,6031.88

ADYEN NV 56,008,8171.80

Companies with lowest ESG ratings
Adjusted ESG score*

Q2 2022 Q3 2022

IDEX CORP 37.93-

DANAHER CORP 52.6252.71

TRADEWEB MARKETS INC 49.94-

UNITEDHEALTH GROUP INC 52.4451.55

MARKETAXESS HOLDINGS INC 50.6547.20

*Scores can range from a high score of 100 to a low of 0. The table is

ordered by negative overall ESG impact on the portfolio, with the most

impactful at the top.

Portfolio

WACI

2022

Q2

2022

Q3

Global Sustainable 165 148

MSCI ACWI* 225 207

*Benchmark. ¹ Extractive revenue exposure as share (%) of total revenue. ²

Value of holdings (VOH) - companies who derive revenues from

extractives. Source: Trucost

Extractives

revenues¹

2022

Q2

2022

Q3

2.45 2.53

2.69 2.62

Extractives

reserves²

2022

Q2

2022

Q3

3.28 2.96

7.04 7.18

Carbon metrics

Regional exposure

0% 20% 40% 60%

Other

Emerging Market

UK

Pacific

Europe & Middle East

Americas

Fund Benchmark

Sector exposure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40%

Other

Cash

Financials

Industrials

Health Care

Information Technology

Fund Benchmark

*Total Brunel portfolio

19

P
age 43



Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public P

Gloucestershire's Holding:

GBP370m

UK Active Equities

-10.0%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

Q4
2020

Q1
2021

Q2
2021

Q3
2021

Q4
2021

Q1
2022

Q2
2022

Q3
2022

Fund

Benchmark

Fund cumulative

Benchmark cumulative

Rolling performanceInvestment strategy & key drivers

Active stock and sector exposure to UK equity markets

Liquidity

Managed

Benchmark

FTSE All Share ex Inv Tr

Outperformance target

+2.0%

Total fund value

GBP1,262m

Risk profile

High

Performance commentary

Performance to quarter end

Performance 3 month % 1 year %

Since

inception %

p.a.*

Fund -3.2 -8.1 1.7

Benchmark -3.6 -3.0 3.0

Excess 0.3 -5.1 -1.4

*per annum

The FTSE All-Share Index excluding Investment Trusts returned

-3.6% over the quarter. UK equities underperformed

developed global equities, which, measured by the MSCI

World Index, returned 2.2%. This was mainly due to

performance within sectors. The UK Healthcare, Financials,

Consumer Discretionary, Real Estate, Communication
Services, Industrials and Utilities Sectors all underperformed

their developed markets counterparts. The UK Information

Technology sector outperformed the developed market

Information Technology sector, however this is only a small

allocation within the UK benchmark and therefore the

contribution insufficient to offset the other sector

performances. The Energy and Materials sectors in the UK

outperformed the same sectors in the developed markets

index, as well as being larger index constituents, offsetting

some of the underperformance from other sectors.

Over the quarter, the portfolio returned -3.2%, outperforming

the index by 0.4%. Attribution analysis shows both stock

selection and allocation effects made positive contributions

to relative returns.

The Real Estate and Health Care sectors were the weakest-

performing in Q3. The portfolio’s underweight allocation to

these sectors contributed to the positive relative return from

sector allocation. The portfolio is underweight in the strongly

performing Energy sector, which partially detracted from

relative performance.

Invesco outperformed over the quarter by 0.8%. From a factor

perspective, performance was driven in particular by positive

returns from Momentum and Value, while Quality was

moderately negative. Implied active sector and industry

weights had a negative impact on portfolio performance,

mainly driven by negative contributions from underweights in

Health Care and Communication Services industries.

Baillie Gifford marginally outperformed the benchmark by

0.1% performance. There was positive stock selection,

especially in the Communication Services, Health Care and

Information Technology Sectors. This was almost entirely

detracted by allocation effects, mainly a significant

underweight to the strongly performing energy sector.

20

P
age 44



Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

UK Active Equities
Top 5 holdings

Market value

(GBP)*
Weight %

ASTRAZENECA PLC 72,282,0415.73

UNILEVER PLC 57,984,6684.60

SHELL PLC 57,767,3324.58

DIAGEO PLC 52,863,8204.19

BP PLC 43,077,6933.41

Companies with lowest ESG ratings
Adjusted ESG score*

Q2 2022 Q3 2022

HALEON PLC 28.53-

INCHCAPE PLC 47.84-

EXPERIAN PLC 44.3243.28

RECKITT BENCKISER GROUP PLC 46.3047.54

HIKMA PHARMACEUTICALS PLC 40.2141.26

*Scores can range from a high score of 100 to a low of 0. The table is

ordered by negative overall ESG impact on the portfolio, with the most

impactful at the top.

Portfolio

WACI

2022

Q2

2022

Q3

UK Active Equities 95 92

FTSE All Share ex Inv 170 165

*Benchmark. ¹ Extractive revenue exposure as share (%) of total revenue. ²

Value of holdings (VOH) - companies who derive revenues from

extractives. Source: Trucost

Extractives

revenues¹

2022

Q2

2022

Q3

3.02 3.35

4.08 4.18

Extractives

reserves²

2022

Q2

2022

Q3

14.82 16.45

19.58 21.67

Carbon metrics

Sector exposure

0% 10% 20% 30% 40%

Other

Cash

Consumer Services

Industrials

Consumer Goods

Financials

Fund Benchmark

*Total Brunel portfolio

21

P
age 45



Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public P

Gloucestershire's Holding:

GBP162m

Emerging Markets Equities

-10.0%

-5.0%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

Q4
2020

Q1
2021

Q2
2021

Q3
2021

Q4
2021

Q1
2022

Q2
2022

Q3
2022

Fund

Benchmark

Fund cumulative

Benchmark cumulative

Rolling performanceInvestment strategy & key drivers

Equity exposure to emerging markets

Liquidity

Managed

Benchmark

MSCI Emerging Markets

Outperformance target

+2.0-3.0%

Total fund value

GBP1,020m

Risk profile

High

Performance commentary

Performance to quarter end

Performance 3 month % 1 year %

Since

inception %

p.a.*

Fund -4.8 -18.1 -2.0

Benchmark -3.6 -12.8 0.5

Excess -1.1 -5.3 -2.6

*per annum

Emerging Markets (EM) were not immune from the global

growth slowdown that plagued risk assets throughout Q3

2022. Growth exporters in EM such as China, Taiwan and

South Korea suffered more compared to peers. Ultimately,

this resulted in a poor quarter for EM, which fell by 3.6% in GBP

terms, based on the MSCI Emerging Markets Index.

The portfolio lagged the benchmark – MSCI Emerging

Markets – by 1.1% on a net-of-fees basis. The driver for

underperformance was a combination of country allocation

and exposure to names impacted by the slowdown in

economic activity. Since-inception performance is now -2.0%

net of fees, lagging the benchmark by 2.6% on an annualised

basis.

Performance by managers was fairly consistent. Genesis,

Wellington and Ninety-One lagged the benchmark by 79bps,

146bps and 85bps respectively.

Exporters suffered during the last quarter as a global

contraction in economic activity started to bite. This was

compounded further in China as a result of the zero-Covid
policy continuing to dampen consumer activity. Indices for

export-driven economies such as China, Korea and Taiwan

fell by 15.6%, 9.0% and 6.5%, respectively; this was behind the

broader benchmark return of -3.6%. On the positive side, oil-

driven economies tended to do better; examples of this

include Saudi Arabia, Qatar and the UAE, which returned

+8.7%, +12.1% and +6.1% respectively. The portfolio is typically

underweight oil-producing regions, which proved

detrimental to relative performance.

Looking forward, managers acknowledged some signs of

improvement for EM, although near-terms risks like growth

shocks and a strong US dollar have not disappeared. Firstly,

regional central banks normalised monetary policy much
faster than in developed markets; hence, they are further

through necessary policy adjustments. Secondly, EM will play

a huge part in the green transition. For example, commodities

linked to the transition - like copper, lithium and cobalt - are

abundant in Africa and Latin America. Finally, the prospect

of Covid moving to the rear-view mirror should improve

sentiment in China and broader EM.

22

P
age 46



Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Emerging Markets Equities
Top 5 holdings

Market value

(GBP)*
Weight %

TAIWAN SEMICONDUCTOR 69,636,3516.83

TENCENT HOLDINGS LTD 35,969,8083.53

SAMSUNG ELECTRONICS CO LTD 27,469,7022.69

AIA GROUP LTD 24,218,7072.37

MEITUAN-CLASS B 19,393,4301.90

Companies with lowest ESG ratings
Adjusted ESG score*

Q2 2022 Q3 2022

NAVER CORP 43.6246.10

GRUPO MEXICO SAB DE CV 42.70-

MEITUAN 54.58-

NASPERS LTD 52.17-

CSPC PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP 41.22-

*Scores can range from a high score of 100 to a low of 0. The table is

ordered by negative overall ESG impact on the portfolio, with the most

impactful at the top.

Portfolio

WACI

2022

Q2

2022

Q3

Emerging Markets 237 176

MSCI Emerging 432 416

*Benchmark. ¹ Extractive revenue exposure as share (%) of total revenue. ²

Value of holdings (VOH) - companies who derive revenues from

extractives. Source: Trucost

Extractives

revenues¹

2022

Q2

2022

Q3

0.83 0.85

3.20 3.15

Extractives

reserves²

2022

Q2

2022

Q3

5.11 5.19

7.23 7.65

Carbon metrics

Regional exposure

0% 20% 40% 60%

Other

UK

Europe Middle East & Africa

Americas

World

Asia

Fund Benchmark

Sector exposure

0% 10% 20% 30%

Other

Cash

Consumer Staples

Information Technology

Consumer Discretionary

Financials

Fund Benchmark

*Total Brunel portfolio

23

P
age 47



Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public P

Gloucestershire's Holding:

GBP225m

Diversifying Returns Fund

-4.0%

-2.0%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

Q4
2020

Q1
2021

Q2
2021

Q3
2021

Q4
2021

Q1
2022

Q2
2022

Q3
2022

Fund

Benchmark

Fund cumulative

Benchmark cumulative

Rolling performanceInvestment strategy & key drivers

Strategy utilising currencies, credit, rates and equities

Liquidity

Managed

Benchmark

SONIA +3%

Outperformance target

0 to +2.0%

Total fund value

GBP1,611m

Risk profile

Moderate

Performance to quarter end

Performance 3 month % 1 year %

Since

inception %

p.a.*

Fund -1.0 -3.1 1.8

Benchmark 1.2 3.8 3.4

Excess -2.2 -6.8 -1.6

Performance commentary

*per annum

The Diversifying Returns Fund returned -1.0% over the third

quarter of 2022. The benchmark return was 1.2%. The portfolio

returned -3.1% for the year ending 30 September 2022,

underperforming the benchmark which returned 3.8%. The

fund has performed considerably better than a sterling

hedged 50/50 equity/bond index which returned -4.4% over

the quarter and -17.4% over one year.

JPM returned 0.5% for the quarter. The largest positive

contributions to returns came from the fixed income carry,

fixed income value and relative value equity momentum

signals. In contrast to the first two quarters of 2022, equity

value detracted from returns. While some choppiness in

equity markets resulted in a negative contribution to returns

from the equity momentum signal, the strategy’s short

duration position again made a positive contribution to

returns.

Lombard Odier were down 2.2% over the quarter. As central

banks echoed market sentiment that recession is increasingly

likely, commodities which had previously bucked the

negative trend for risk assets, fell along with Lombard Odier’s
other asset class exposures. Sovereign bonds again made the

largest negative contribution to returns, reflecting that they

are the largest allocation within the portfolio. Long volatility

did make a positive contribution to performance of

approximately 30 basis points. The current environment is

challenging for a long only asset allocator. However,

Lombard Odier have deleveraged their portfolio aggressively

which has avoided larger losses that have been experienced

by some of their peers.

UBS returned -1.6% in Q3. Recent trends continued in currency

markets with long Brazilian Real and Chilian Peso positions

making the largest positive contributions to returns and the

short US Dollar position making the largest negative
contribution. The largest position in the portfolio remains long

Japanese Yen and this made a positive contribution to

returns over the quarter.

24

P
age 48



Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public P

Gloucestershire's Holding:

GBP182m

Multi-Asset Credit

-15.0%

-10.0%

-5.0%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

Q3
2021

Q4
2021

Q1
2022

Q2
2022

Q3
2022

Fund

Benchmark

Fund cumulative

Benchmark cumulative

Rolling performanceInvestment strategy & key drivers

Exposure to higher yield bonds with moderate credit risk

Liquidity

Managed

Benchmark

SONIA +4%

Outperformance target

0 to +1.0%

Total fund value

GBP2,333m

Risk profile

Moderate

Performance to quarter end

Performance 3 month % 1 year %

Since

inception %

p.a.*

Fund -0.9 -11.5 -8.9

Benchmark 1.4 4.8 4.7

Excess -2.3 -16.2 -13.6

Performance commentary

*per annum

Yields rose significantly around the world, with almost all

points of the curve impacted. In the United States – where the

Multi-Asset Credit portfolio is most exposed – 10-year and 2-

year yields ended the period at 3.8% and 4.2%, respectively.

This represented an increase of 80 basis points (bps) and 130

bps respectively.

As mentioned in the CIO commentary, credit spreads were

volatile but ultimately ended the quarter at a similar level to

June 2022. As a result, credit spreads acted as a minor

tailwind.

Ultimately this resulted in mixed performance within sub-

investment grade credit. Floating rate markets held up better

given the lower duration, whereas fixed rate securities

suffered. The Bloomberg Global High Yield index fell by

approximately 200bps in GBP hedged terms; however, the

Morningstar LSTA US Leveraged Loan index – a proxy for loans

– appreciated by roughly 100bps in GBP hedged terms.

The portfolio returned -0.9% over Q3 in GBP terms, which is

behind the SONIA +4% benchmark of +1.4%. This was

marginally behind the secondary benchmark, which

comprises loans and high yield bonds; it returned -0.5% more.

At manager level, Neuberger Berman and CQS both returned

-0.8% over the quarter. Oaktree was further behind, returning

-1.2%, primarily due to China exposure in its emerging market

debt allocation. CQS benefited from a larger exposure to

floating rate assets (~65%) than that of the other managers.

But the exposure was offset by poor performance in bank

capital, which fell over 5% over the quarter.

Portfolio performance since inception ended the quarter at -

8.9%, behind the SONIA +4% benchmark return of +4.7%. The

portfolio remained ahead of the composite benchmark from

inception to quarter-end, outperforming by 0.3%.

Despite the obvious recession and inflationary risks, the

outlook for credit is still positive from a pricing perspective.
Corporate credit spreads are above 500 bps for loan markets

and above 400 bps for High Yield Bonds. Based on these

spreads, price-implied default rates are now over 10%, which

is in excess of the most bearish default estimates from

managers. The portfolio remains well-positioned to capitalise

on attractive pricing; the current yield-to-worst is now 10%,

with a modest duration of 2 years..

25

P
age 49



Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public P

Gloucestershire's Holding:

GBP299m

Sterling Corporate Bonds

-25.0%

-20.0%

-15.0%

-10.0%

-5.0%

0.0%

5.0%

Q3
2021

Q4
2021

Q1
2022

Q2
2022

Q3
2022

Fund

Benchmark

Fund cumulative

Benchmark cumulative

Rolling performanceInvestment strategy & key drivers

Managed credit selection to generate excess sterling yield

returns

Liquidity

Managed

Benchmark

iBoxx Sterling Non Gilt x

Outperformance target

+1.0%

Total fund value

GBP1,721m

Risk profile

Moderate

Performance to quarter end

Performance 3 month % 1 year %

Since

inception %

p.a.*

Fund -11.1 -22.5 -19.0

Benchmark -11.0 -21.9 -18.7

Excess -0.1 -0.6 -0.3

Performance commentary

*per annum

Over the quarter, rising interest rates continued to drive

government bond yields higher. In addition, following the

mini-budget announcement in late September, gilt yields

rose sharply. Over the period, the benchmark 10-year gilt

yield rose by 186 basis points (bps) to 4.09%, and the average

sterling investment grade credit spread widened by 25bps to

1.99%.

It was against this context that the benchmark returned -

11.01%. The main driver of negative absolute returns was the

weakness in UK government bond markets. Over the period,

the Sterling Corporate Bonds portfolio returned -11.06% (net

of fees), performing broadly in line with the benchmark.

Portfolio duration was neutral to slightly higher than the

benchmark throughout the quarter, ending the period 0.14

years long. This reflected RLAM’s view that the market’s

interest rate expectations had risen too high.

The portfolio’s significant underweight exposure to

supranational bonds generated a negative contribution to

performance, but much of this was in relation to the relatively

long duration of the portfolio assets relative to those of the

benchmark.

Similarly, the overweight exposure to Structured bonds made

a positive contribution to duration due to the relatively short

duration of the assets. Overall, the impact of duration (as the

aggregate of impacts at sector level, despite the portfolio’s

modest overall long duration exposure) was positive,

contributing 76bps to relative performance.

Sector allocation detracted 29bps from relative

performance, mainly reflecting the overweight position in the

structured sector.

Security selection also detracted 47bps from relative

performance. This was primarily driven by poor relative

performance of bonds in the social housing, structured,
consumer services and banks sectors, as well as in Utilities. This

outweighed positive security selection in the Insurance and

Real Estate sectors.

Although further volatility is likely, RLAM believes that the

widening in credit spreads this year has taken valuations to

attractive levels. However, weak GDP growth and recession

is likely to impact the corporate sector and it is prudent to

expect some increase in default rates.

26

P
age 50



Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public P

Gloucestershire's Holding:

GBP285m

PAB Passive Global Equities

-10.0%

-8.0%

-6.0%

-4.0%

-2.0%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

Q4
2021

Q1
2022

Q2
2022

Q3
2022

Fund

Benchmark

Fund cumulative

Benchmark cumulative

Rolling performanceInvestment strategy & key drivers

Passive global equity exposure aligned to Paris Agreement

climate goals

Liquidity

High

Benchmark

FTSE Dev World PAB

Outperformance target

Match

Total fund value

GBP1,742m

Risk profile

High

Performance commentary

Performance to quarter end

Performance 3 month % 1 year %

Since

inception %

p.a.*

Fund 1.8 - -7.6

Benchmark 1.7 - -7.5

Excess - - -0.1

*per annum

Following two quarters of negative performance in Q1 and

Q2 2022, the FTSE Developed Paris Aligned (PAB) index

performed positively over Q3, rising +1.7% over the three-

month period. The PAB Passive Global Equities portfolio

closely replicated benchmark performance over the period.

This outcome masked the volatile performance profile of the
portfolio over the period. The portfolio returned 13%+ to the

middle of August, driven by the performance of Information

Technology, before retreating to finish +1.8% for Q3 as a

whole.

Consumer Discretionary and Industrials were the best-

performing sectors over Q3, with the retail industry performing

particularly well, most notably Amazon. The worst-performing

sector was Communication Services, led by the Telecoms

industry. The Real Estate and Materials sectors also performed

negatively over the period..

27

P
age 51



Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

PAB Passive Global Equities
Top 5 holdings

Market value

(GBP)*
Weight %

APPLE INC 115,269,6066.62

MICROSOFT CORP 97,986,1015.62

AMAZON.COM INC 80,568,5354.62

ALPHABET INC-CL A 44,052,8332.53

HONEYWELL INTERNATIONAL INC 41,501,6912.38

Companies with lowest ESG ratings
Adjusted ESG score*

Q2 2022 Q3 2022

PFIZER INC 46.8346.63

JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 47.84-

ABBOTT LABORATORIES 39.08-

TESLA INC 51.3450.98

ABBVIE INC 33.1034.56

*Scores can range from a high score of 100 to a low of 0. The table is

ordered by negative overall ESG impact on the portfolio, with the most

impactful at the top.

Portfolio

WACI

2022

Q2

2022

Q3

PAB Passive Global 114 103

FTSE Dev World TR 198 180

*Benchmark. ¹ Extractive revenue exposure as share (%) of total revenue. ²

Value of holdings (VOH) - companies who derive revenues from

extractives. Source: Trucost

Extractives

revenues¹

2022

Q2

2022

Q3

1.00 0.99

2.60 2.52

Extractives

reserves²

2022

Q2

2022

Q3

1.61 1.57

6.90 7.00

Carbon metrics

Regional exposure

0% 20% 40% 60%

Other

Emerging Market

UK

Pacific

Europe & Middle East

Americas

Fund

Sector exposure

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%

Other

Cash

Consumer Discretionary

Industrials

Financials

Information Technology

Fund

*Total Brunel portfolio

28

P
age 52



Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public P

Gloucestershire's Holding:

GBP93m

Passive Developed Equities (Hedged)

-20.0%

-10.0%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

Q4
2020

Q1
2021

Q2
2021

Q3
2021

Q4
2021

Q1
2022

Q2
2022

Q3
2022

Fund

Benchmark

Fund cumulative

Benchmark cumulative

Rolling performanceInvestment strategy & key drivers

Passive global equity exposure - hedged

Liquidity

High

Benchmark

FTSE Developed

Outperformance target

Match

Total fund value

GBP713m

Risk profile

High

Performance commentary

Performance to quarter end

Performance 3 month % 1 year %

Since

inception %

p.a.*

Fund -4.9 -16.1 4.6

Benchmark -4.8 -16.1 4.7

Excess - -0.1 -0.1

*per annum

Passive Developed Equities (GBP Hedged) returned -4.9% in

the third quarter of 2022 and -16.1% over the past year. The

fund closely replicated the FTSE Developed World (GBP

Hedged) Index.

Pound Sterling depreciated aggressively against a basket of

currencies over the quarter, evidenced by the positive returns

generated by the unhedged product.

Performance was weak across sectors. The Consumer

Discretionary and Energy were the least poorly performing,

while Real Estate and Telecommunications made the largest

losses. However, the biggest negative contributions to overall

performance came from the Financial and Technology

sectors which account for a larger share of the index than

Telecommunications and Health Care.

North America, which represents a large share of the index,

was the worst performing region for GBP hedged investors.

29

P
age 53



Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Passive Developed Equities (Hedged)
Top 5 holdings

Market value

(GBP)*
Weight %

APPLE INC 59,901,0124.17

MICROSOFT CORP 49,421,2773.44

AMAZON.COM INC 28,422,7271.98

TESLA INC 19,092,9381.33

ALPHABET INC-CL A 16,279,7561.13

Companies with lowest ESG ratings
Adjusted ESG score*

Q2 2022 Q3 2022

JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 47.84-

TESLA INC 51.3450.98

ABBOTT LABORATORIES 39.0841.77

META PLATFORMS INC 41.8642.21

AMAZON.COM INC 50.7250.46

*Scores can range from a high score of 100 to a low of 0. The table is

ordered by negative overall ESG impact on the portfolio, with the most

impactful at the top.

Portfolio

WACI

2022

Q2

2022

Q3

Passive Developed 245 256

*Benchmark. ¹ Extractive revenue exposure as share (%) of total revenue. ²

Value of holdings (VOH) - companies who derive revenues from

extractives. Source: Trucost

Extractives

revenues¹

2022

Q2

2022

Q3

2.68 2.64

Extractives

reserves²

2022

Q2

2022

Q3

6.61 6.60

Carbon metrics

Regional exposure

0% 20% 40% 60%

Other

Emerging Market

UK

Pacific

Europe & Middle East

Americas

Fund

Sector exposure

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%

Other

Cash

Industrials

Health Care

Financials

Technology

Fund

*Total Brunel portfolio

30

P
age 54



Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Private Equity Cycle 1

P

North America 55.0%

Western Europe 32.1%

Asia Pacific 6.2%

Global 2.5%

Middle East/North 2.1%

Other 2.1%

Country
Invested in underlying investments

Financials 40.1%

Information 22.4%

Health Care 15.8%

Consumer 10.5%

Consumer Staples 4.0%

Other 7.2%

Sector
GICs level 1

Commitment to Investment

£45.59m

Amount Called

£23.89m

% called to date

52.40

Number of underlying funds

7

Gloucestershire's Holding:

GBP33.13m

Investment objective

Global portfolio of private equity investments

Benchmark

MSCI ACWI

Outperformance target

+ 3 %

Commitment to portfolio

£43.00m

The fund is denominated in GBP

Performance commentary

Source: Colmore

Country data is lagged by one quarter

Source: Colmore

Sector data is lagged by one quarter

Portfolio summary

Market value

(GBP millions)

3 Month

MWR*

1 Year

MWR*

Since Inception

MWR*
Inflows Outflows

Net cash flow

latest quarter

Value added

latest quarter

Contribution

to return:

3 months

Contribution

to return:

1 year

Contribution

to return:

since inception

33.1 6.5% 38.8% 30.0% 169,953 - 169,953 1,977,100 6.5% 38.0% 26.8%

*Money weighted return

As of September 2022, the drawdown of Cycle 1 had

increased slightly from the previous quarter, and

approximately 52% of the committed capital had been
drawn. Cycle 1 was still in the investment phase. The portfolio

performed well in terms of multiples and net IRR, which

continued to hold amid the uncertainty in the market.

Some of the earlier funds in Cycle 1 had started to develop

and had shown encouraging signs of strong performance,

albeit noting the now-stale valuation marks and material

public market movements since those dates. The main value

drivers for Cycle 1 were these earlier funds, namely CD Global
Secondaries V, NB PE Impact Fund and NB Strategic Co-

Investment Fund IV.

The Cycle 1 PE portfolio came out of the Covid pandemic

relatively well. However, it now faces a more challenging

market environment that could be worse than during Covid.

Nonetheless, the Cycle 1 PE portfolio is diversified by strategy,

sector and geography. The GPs in Cycle 1 have been through

market cycles and have the experience to manage their

portfolio in difficult markets.

The GPs in Cycle 1 are actively investing, and some are

funding their investments through short-term fund credit

facilities. Most are expected to make capital calls throughout

2022. Overall, all the private equity funds in Cycle 1 are now

successfully closed and in full deployment mode.

31

P
age 55



Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Private Equity Cycle 2

P

North America 58.1%

Western Europe 25.0%

Global 5.1%

Asia Pacific 4.3%

South America 1.3%

Other 6.2%

Country
Invested in underlying investments

Information 35.0%

Financials 30.7%

Industrials 13.0%

Health Care 7.5%

Materials 6.0%

Other 7.8%

Sector
GICs level 1

Commitment to Investment

£74.99m

Amount Called

£16.57m

% called to date

22.09

Number of underlying funds

14

Gloucestershire's Holding:

GBP19.77m

Investment objective

Global portfolio of private equity investments

Benchmark

MSCI ACWI

Outperformance target

+ 3 %

Commitment to portfolio

£70.00m

The fund is denominated in GBP

Performance commentary

Source: Colmore

Country data is lagged by one quarter

Source: Colmore

Sector data is lagged by one quarter

Portfolio summary

Market value

(GBP millions)

3 Month

MWR*

1 Year

MWR*

Since Inception

MWR*
Inflows Outflows

Net cash flow

latest quarter

Value added

latest quarter

Contribution

to return:

3 months

Contribution

to return:

1 year

Contribution

to return:

since inception

19.8 -5.6% 20.1% 25.3% 462,361 9,321 453,040 -1,110,970 -5.3% 21.7% 52.2%

*Money weighted return

As of September 2022, Cycle 2 had committed to 14 funds.

This left Cycle 2 fully committed on schedule. The total capital

drawn down for Cycle 2 increased slightly from the previous
quarter and stood at 23%. It is worth noting that the total

capital deployed was higher, due to funds using credit

facilities to fund investments.

Cycle 2 made great progress in terms of fund commitments

and the quality of the GPs that accepted Brunel clients into

their funds. Whilst still early, Cycle 2 made a strong start and

still managed sustain its returns amid the uncertainty in the

market. The portfolio ended Q2 well above cost at this early
stage, with no J-curve since inception. This was largely due to

the two secondaries funds (LGT and Montana) that we

committed to at the start of the private equity programme.

Both have early successes to show and have performed well.

Going forward, we expect more funds to start calling capital

as they pay down the credit facilities that they used to fund

the investments, which were made 6-12 months ago.

32

P
age 56



Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Private Debt Cycle 2

P

North America 80.0%

Europe 18.0%

Asia Pacific 1.3%

Other 0.7%

Country
Invested in underlying investments

Information 35.8%

Health Care 23.8%

Industrials 21.5%

Consumer 6.3%

Other 12.6%

Sector
GICs level 1

Commitment to Investment

£120.00m

Amount Called

£43.12m

% called to date

35.93

Number of underlying funds

1

Gloucestershire's Holding:

GBP46.78m

Investment objective

Global portfolio of senior direct loans, predominantly to

PE-sponsored companies

Benchmark

SONIA

Outperformance target

+ 4 %

Commitment to portfolio

£120.00m

The fund is denominated in GBP

Performance commentary

Source: Aksia and underlying managers

Country data is lagged by two quarters

Source: Aksia and underlying managers

Sector data is lagged by two quarters

Portfolio summary

Market value

(GBP millions)

3 Month

MWR*

1 Year

MWR*

Since Inception

MWR*
Inflows Outflows

Net cash flow

latest quarter

Value added

latest quarter

Contribution

to return:

3 months

Contribution

to return:

1 year

Contribution

to return:

since inception

46.8 8.8% 19.8% 20.2% - - - 3,305,920 10.5% 14.3% 14.7%

*Money weighted return

As of September 2022, Cycle 2 was fully committed to seven

funds. The portfolio is still in ramp-up, with deployment

increasing to over 30%. The next capital call (due in October)
is expected to take deployment to c.46%. We remain pleased

with the pace of deployment to date.

Given the sustained economic headwinds, managers

retained majority allocations to defensive sectors associated

with a low degree of cyclicality, strong cashflow generation

and an ability to pass through rising costs to customers. As

such, healthcare, professional services, education and

software-as-a-service firms remained favoured by managers.
New investments in the portfolio include Globeducate (a

Spanish school operator), Astrix (a provider of outsourced

consulting and staffing services), RGI (a European insurance

software firm) and British Engineering Services (a provider of

mechanical inspection services).

The portfolio currently has a tilt towards to the US (owing to

faster deployment by US-focused managers) but is expected

to normalise to a broadly even split between the US and

Europe over the medium term.

Portfolio performance was positive. However, as noted in

prior reports, the portfolio remains in ramp-up so performance

measures are not yet meaningful.

Please note that data reflects the value of solely unrealised

positions within the portfolio (and excludes the value of any

realised (and thus exited) positions).

33

P
age 57



Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Infrastructure Cycle 1

P

Europe Inc UK 69.0%

North America 19.0%

Reserved 4.0%

ROW 4.0%

Uncommitted 4.0%

Country
Commitment in underlying investments

Wind & Solar 36.6%

Rail 6.7%

Diversified Renewables 6.6%

Roads 6.4%

Distrubuted Energy 6.1%

Other 37.6%

Sector

Commitment to Investment

£42.94m

Amount Called

£30.01m

% called to date

69.90

Number of underlying funds

5

Gloucestershire's Holding:

GBP32.37m

Investment objective

Portfolio of predominantly European sustainable

infrastructure assets

Benchmark

CPI

Outperformance target

+ 4 %

Commitment to portfolio

£43.00m

The fund is denominated in GBP

Performance commentary

Source: Stepstone

Country data is lagged by one quarter

Source: Stepstone

Sector data is lagged by one quarter

Portfolio summary

Market value

(GBP millions)

3 Month

MWR*

1 Year

MWR*

Since Inception

MWR*
Inflows Outflows

Net cash flow

latest quarter

Value added

latest quarter

Contribution

to return:

3 months

Contribution

to return:

1 year

Contribution

to return:

since inception

32.4 7.4% 18.8% 11.1% 791,241 100,632 690,609 2,151,270 7.5% 17.8% 6.0%

*Money weighted return

Wider macroeconomic troubles intensified throughout Q3.

The headwinds faced by the renewables sector highlight the

importance of working with resilient and experienced
managers. Despite deployment slowing from recent highs

due to concerns over the increasing cost of capital, the

energy crisis presents opportunities across the value chain.

Political green aspirations have strengthened worldwide, and

infrastructure funds can play a vital role in enabling ambitious

targets to be reached.

As at the end of Q3 2022, Cycle 1 Infrastructure was c.93%

committed and c.71% deployed. Only one further tactical

deal remained to be sourced to complete Cycle 1.

During Q3, NTR successfully reached 100% deployment and

then turned to focus on management of its portfolio. NTR also

completed the successful combined financing of two

projects – Murley Wind Farm and Ockendon Solar Farm. The

latter is backed by a power purchase agreement with BT

Group, who will use 100% of the power generated by

Ockendon over 10 years. In August, Capital Dynamics VIII
acquired three follow-on projects of the Crossbow Italian

solar pipeline, for a total installed capacity of 106.5 MW in

Italy’s Lazio region.

Brunel is pleased with the deployment of Cycle 1 and the

overall development of the portfolio. Over the next couple of

years, we expect the focus to shift from deployment to

performance and monitoring of the portfolio.

34

P
age 58



Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Infrastructure (General) Cycle 2

P

Europe Inc UK 58.5%

North America 26.5%

Reserved 6.0%

Uncommitted 6.0%

ROW 3.0%

Country
Commitment in underlying investments

Diversified Power 19.7%

Diversified Transport 17.1%

Energy Efficiency 16.4%

Fiber 10.5%

Towers 4.7%

Other 31.6%

Sector

Commitment to Investment

£65.00m

Amount Called

£33.09m

% called to date

50.91

Number of underlying funds

1

Gloucestershire's Holding:

GBP33.05m

Investment objective

Global portfolio of infrastructure with a focus on non-RE

sectors and sustainable assets

Benchmark

CPI

Outperformance target

+ 4 %

Commitment to portfolio

£65.00m

The fund is denominated in GBP

Performance commentary

Source: Stepstone.

Country data is lagged by one quarter

Source: Stepstone

Sector data is lagged by one quarter

Portfolio summary

Market value

(GBP millions)

3 Month

MWR*

1 Year

MWR*

Since Inception

MWR*
Inflows Outflows

Net cash flow

latest quarter

Value added

latest quarter

Contribution

to return:

3 months

Contribution

to return:

1 year

Contribution

to return:

since inception

33.0 -0.1% 3.1% 1.8% - - - -28,810 - - -

*Money weighted return

Wider macroeconomic troubles intensified throughout Q3.

The headwinds faced by the renewables sector highlight the

importance of working with resilient and experienced
managers. Despite deployment slowing from recent highs

due to concerns over the increasing cost of capital, the

energy crisis presents opportunities right along the value

chain. Political green aspirations have strengthened

worldwide, and infrastructure funds can play a vital role in

enabling ambitious targets to be reached.

As at the end of Q3 2022, Cycle 2G was c.89% committed

and c.54% deployed. Six primary funds had been committed,
too. One more tactical deal is expected to be sourced to

complete a portfolio of seven Tactical investments. Upon

completion, the Cycle 2G portfolio will be fully committed.

Key events in the quarter included a 13.3% drawdown from

Vauban CIF III. At quarter,-end, CIF III had successfully

committed c.€2.5bn of equity, which represents c.95% of the

€2.65bn fund size investing in 12 assets and benefiting from

strong diversification in terms of geographies (the US and

seven countries across Europe).

In their Q2 report, Meridiam expressed concerns over

increases in base rates and counterparty risk premium.

Despite this, Meridiam projects have been performing well

operationally and are currently valued at cost.

Project Twelve, a secondary position in Infracapital

Greenfield Partners I, is expected to see an uplift in its
valuation as Bioenergy Infrastructure Group (“BIG”) stabilised

35

P
age 59



Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Infrastructure (General) Cycle 2

and began turning towards growth. BIG is a UK Energy from

Waste aggregation platform.

Brunel is very pleased with the development of the Cycle 2G
portfolio. The portfolio is diversified and invested in quality

opportunities that we believe will provide strong

performance both in terms of returns and sustainability - the

latter both societal and environmental.

36

P
age 60



Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Infrastructure (Renewables) Cycle 2

P

Uncommitted 33.0%

Europe Inc UK 30.0%

North America 19.0%

ROW 14.0%

Reserved 4.0%

Country
Commitment in underlying investments

Solar & Wind 63.4%

Diversified Renewables 25.5%

Energy Storage 7.6%

Other 3.5%

Sector

Commitment to Investment

£65.00m

Amount Called

£19.97m

% called to date

30.72

Number of underlying funds

1

Gloucestershire's Holding:

GBP19.92m

Investment objective

Global portfolio of renewable energy and associated

infrastructure assets

Benchmark

CPI

Outperformance target

+ 4 %

Commitment to portfolio

£65.00m

The fund is denominated in GBP

Performance commentary

Source: Stepstone

Country data is lagged by one quarter

Source: Stepstone

Sector data is lagged by one quarter

Portfolio summary

Market value

(GBP millions)

3 Month

MWR*

1 Year

MWR*

Since Inception

MWR*
Inflows Outflows

Net cash flow

latest quarter

Value added

latest quarter

Contribution

to return:

3 months

Contribution

to return:

1 year

Contribution

to return:

since inception

19.9 7.3% 16.9% 11.2% - - - 1,277,920 - - -

*Money weighted return

The portfolio experienced strong deployment of capital over

the quarter (c.£80mn), driven mainly by the closing of three

tactical deals which were approved in Q2. These were:
Project Link, a co-investment with Meridiam into an electricity

interconnector; Project Gutenberg, a co-investment in a

global offshore wind platform; and Project Mandel, a solar

platform investment alongside Macquarie.

As at the end of Q3, Cycle 2 Renewables is c.67% committed.

The portfolio had committed to six Primary Funds by quarter-

end; the most recent commitment was to NextPower Solar

ESG Fund, which held its first close in Q3. One remaining
primary allocation and approximately two more tacticals are

required to bring the Cycle 2 Renewables to full commitment.

Mirova Energy Transition Fund 5 (MET 5) completed its final

close, raising €1.6bn, (€600m above the target). Mirova has

currently deployed €600m in France, Poland, and Belgium.

Brookfield Renewable Sidecar IV was c.72% committed at

quarter-end. It is likely the remaining capital will be used to

fund growth in its current portfolio of eight geographically

diverse assets, rather than channelled to new investments.

The portfolio benefited from decarbonisation and energy

tailwinds. The competitiveness of wind and solar has been

enhanced by higher commodity prices on thermal

generation. Despite early signs of positive performance,

pressure on costs globally increases the difficulty of sourcing

attractive opportunities. However, we remain confident the
strong pipeline will ensure deployment of this mandate in line

with scope and specification.

37

P
age 61



Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

UK Property

Property holdings summary

Holding
Cost

(GBP millions)

Market value

(GBP millions)

Perf.

3 month

Perf.

FYTD

Perf.

1 year

Perf.

3 year

Perf.

5 year

Inception

Date

Brunel UK Property Apr 2020143.6 243.5 -2.2% 2.5% 14.0% - -

14.0

0.0

10.9

0.0

11.4

0.0
0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

20.0

1 Year 3 Years

Portfolio Benchmark Objective

Commitment to portfolio

£239.3m

Amount Called

£204.1m

Number of portfolios

25

Investment strategy & key drivers

Portfolio of active UK property funds

seeking capital & income returns

Liquidity

Illiquid

Benchmark

MSCI/AREF UK

Outperformance target

+ 0.5 %

Performance commentary

Most UK property funds operate a quarterly valuation cycle,

which gives investors a lagged snapshot of real estate

pricing. End-September NAVs do not reflect the most recent

interest rate uplifts or the impact of higher gilt yields on asset
values and expectations. These will be more evident in the

Q4 2022 valuation numbers.

Transactions in direct property took place in Q3, though

investment volumes slowed across all sectors, particularly the

office sector. Late Q4 is likely to offer opportunities for cash

investors, as forced sellers emerge.

Having raised some liquidity for clients in the first half of this

year, Brunel made commitments to the UBS Life Sciences

Property Trust in August and over 40% of those client

commitments have already been deployed to secure a

development site adjacent to a pharmaceutical company’s

existing operations, north of London. UBS expects to deploy
the majority of the remaining commitments before the end of

2022. The UK Life Sciences industry needs bespoke real estate

to grow and UBS has been an early mover in offering to

develop bespoke laboratory space in this sector, where

demand is strong and rental terms can be set to benefit both

corporates and investors.

38

P
age 62



Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

International Property

Property holdings summary

Holding
Cost

(GBP millions)

Market value

(GBP millions)

Perf.

3 month

Perf.

FYTD

Perf.

1 year

Perf.

3 year

Perf.

5 year

Inception

Date

Brunel International Property Apr 20209.6 54.9 9.2% 23.2% 34.5% - -

34.5

0.0

36.4

0.0

36.9

0.0
0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

1 Year 3 Years

Portfolio Benchmark Objective

Commitment to portfolio

£60.6m

Amount Called

£39.3m

Number of portfolios

10

Investment strategy & key drivers

Portfolio of active International property

funds seeking capital & income returns

Liquidity

Illiquid

Benchmark

GREFI

Outperformance target

+ 0.5 %

Performance commentary

With interest rates continuing to rise with the tightening of

monetary policy, recession risk is elevated in Europe as well

as North America, with global growth forecasts slowing and

a property market downturn likely. The recent increases in
bond yields point to further upward real estate yield

adjustments across various sectors in the coming quarters.

Real estate repricing began in some regions over Q2 and

continued in Q3, reversing the strong start in Q1. The primary

trigger was the lending market, where the increase in swap

rates pushed the all-in debt costs above the property income

yield for most core income-producing asset classes,

effectively knocking a significant proportion of potential

buyers out of the market.

Despite some significant challenges on the capital market

side, logistics occupier markets continued to demonstrate
positive demand characteristics and rental growth. Retail

markets were largely stable, but trading is still likely to

ultimately suffer, as consumers retrench.

Brunel finalised due diligence on the Prologis European

Logistics Fund, which focuses on core stabilised operating

logistics assets across all major European logistics gateways,

and on the Charter Hall Prime Industrial fund, an AUD $12bn

open-ended fund comprising high-quality industrial and

logistics assets. Against a backdrop of rising interest rates and

moderating growth, resilient income streams from industrial

assets, with long-term inflation protection, should offer

investors a relatively defensive strategy.

39

P
age 63



Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Glossary

G

Term Comment

ACS
Authorised Contractual Scheme - a collective investment
arrangement that holds and manages assets on behalf of a

number of investors.

Absolute Risk
Overall assessment of the volatility that an investment will

have.

Active Risk/Weight
A measure of the percentage of a holding that differs from

the benchmark index; can relate to an equity, a sector or a

country/region.

Amount Called
In private investments, this reflects the actual investment
amount that has been drawn down.

Amount Committed
In private investments, this is the amount that a client has

committed to an investment - it will be drawn dawn (called)

during the investment period.

Annualised Return Returns are quoted on an annualised basis, net of fees.

Asset Allocation
Performance driven by selecting specific country or sector

positions.

Basis Points (BP)
A basis point is 0.01% - so 100bps is 1.0%. Often used for fund
performance and management fees.

CTB
Climate Transition Benchmark - targets 30% lower carbon

exposure from 2020 and then a 7% annual reduction.

DLUHC
Department for Levelling Up, Housing & Communities; the
government body with oversight of pooling.

DPI
Distributed to Paid In; ratio of money distributed to Limited

Partners by the Fund, relative to contributions. Used for private

markets investments.

Duration

A measure of bond price sensitivity to changes in interest

rates. A high duration suggests a bond's price will fall by

relatively more if interest rates increase than a bond with a

low duration.

Term Comment

ESG

ESG is an umbrella term to capture the various environmental,
social and governance risks investors factor into their

assessment of a company's sustainability profile. Brunel views

assessing ESG factors as a central part of our fiduciary duty.

ESG Score

MSCI score based on its assessment of the ESG credentials of
an underlying investment. If the portfolio score is below the

index, the portfolio is assessed by MSCI to be investing in

companies with a better ESG score.

Extractive exposures VOH
Value of Holdings of invested companies which derive
revenues from extractive industries.

General Partner (GP)
In Private Equity, the GP is usually the firm that manages the

fund.

Gross Performance Performance before deduction of fees

Growth
Growth stocks typically exhibit faster long term growth

prospects and are often valued at higher price multiples.

IRR
Internal Rate of Return - a return that takes account of actual
money invested.

Legacy Assets Client assets not managed via the Brunel Pension Partnership.

Limited Partner (LP)
In Private Equity, an LP is usually a third party investor in the

fund.

Low Volatility
Volatility of returns is widely used a risk measure. Low Volatility

is a strategy that attempts to minimise the return volatility.

MWR
Money weighted return - similar to an IRR - it reflects the

actual investment return taking into account cashflows.

Momentum
An investment strategy that aims to capitalize on the

continuance of existing trends in the market.

Net Performance Performance after deduction of all fees.

40

P
age 64



Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public

Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

Glossary

Term Comment

PAB
Paris Aligned Benchmark - targets a 50% lower carbon
exposure from 2020 and then a 7% annual reduction.

Quality
Quality stocks typically have a high Return on Equity, a very

consistent profit outcome and exhibit higher and stable

margins.

Relative Risk Relative volatility when compared with a benchmark.

SONIA
Sterling Overnight Index Average - Overnight interbank

interest rate - replacement for LIBOR.

Sector/Stock Selection
Performance driven by the selection of individual investments

within a country or sector.

Since Inception Period since the fund was formed.

Since Initial Investment Period since the client made its first investment in the fund.

Standard Deviation

Standard deviation is a measure of volatility for an investment

using historical data. Volatility is used as a measure of

investment risk. A higher number may indicate a more volatile
(or riskier) investment but should be taken in context with

other measures of risk.

TVPI

Total Value to Paid In; ratio of the current value of remaining

investments within a fund, plus the total value of all
distributions to date, relative to the total amount of capital

paid in.

Time Weighted Return
A return measure that takes no account of actual amounts

invested.

Total Return (TR)
Total Return - including price change and accumulated

dividends.

Total extractive exposure
Revenue derived from extractive operations as a % of total

corporate revenue.

Term Comment

Tracking Error
A measure of relative volatility around a benchmark. A fund
which differs greatly from the benchmark is likely to have a

high tracking error.

Transitioned Assets
Client assets that have been transferred to the Brunel Pension

Partnership.

Value
Value stocks typically have a low valuation when measured

on a Price to Book or Price to earnings ratio.

WACI

Weighted Average Carbon Intensity; measures the carbon

intensity of businesses rather than total carbon emissions. It is
expressed as tonnes of CO2 equivalent per million GBP of

investment exposure.

Yield to Worst
Lowest possible yield on a bond portfolio assuming no

defaults.

41

P
age 65



Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public D

Disclaimer
Authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority No. 790168.

Brunel accepts no liability for loss arising for the use of this material and any opinions expressed are current (at time of publication) only. This report is not meant as

a guide to investing or as a source of specific investment recommendations and does not constitute investment research. Whilst all reasonable steps have been

taken to ensure the accuracy of the information provided, Brunel has no liability to any persons for any errors or omissions contained within this document. There

are risks associated with making investments, including the loss of capital invested. Past performance is not an indicator to future performance.

Brunel provides products and services to professional, institutional investors and its services are not directed at, or open to, retail clients.

Certain information included in this report may have been sourced from third parties. While Brunel believes that such third party information is reliable, Brunel does

not guarantee its accuracy, timeliness or completeness and it is subject to change without notice.

Cover photo, Clifton Suspension Bridge, Bristol, UK. Credit: Chris Dorney, Shutterstock.

Nothing in this report should be interpreted to state or imply that past performance is an indicator of future performance. References to benchmark or indices are

provided for information only and do not imply that your portfolio will achieve similar results.

The Global Industry Classification Standard (GICS®) was developed by and is the exclusive property of Morgan Stanley Capital International Inc.

and Standard & Poor's. GICS is a service mark of MSCI and S&P and has been licensed for use by State Street Bank and Trust Company.

The Industry Classification Benchmark is a joint product of FTSE International Limited and Dow Jones & Company, Inc. and has been licensed for use.'FTSE' is a

trade and service mark of London Stock Exchange and The Financial Times Limited. "Dow Jones" and "DJ" are trade and service marks of Dow Jones & Company

Inc. FTSE and Dow Jones do not accept any liability to any person for any loss or damage arising out of any error or omission in the ICB.

This material is for information only and for the sole use of the recipient, it is not to be reproduced, copied or shared. The report was prepared utilising agreed

scenarios, assumptions and formats.

Performance Report Quarter ending 30 September 2022

Summary

3

Overview of

assets

5

Performance

attribution

6

Responsible

investment

8

Risk and return

9

Portfolio

overview

11

CIO commentary

14

Portfolios

16

Glossary

40

Disclaimer

42

42

P
age 66



Brunel Pension Partnership

Forging better futures
Classification: Public 43

P
age 67



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Gloucestershire Pension Fund Update ‐ Part 1 .

Fund Asset Allocation vs Strategic Asset Allocation @ 30 September 2022

Market Value 
30.09.22

Target Allocation*  Range
Fund Asset 
Allocation
30.09.22

Variation from 
Target

Variation from 
previous quarter

Asset Class Manager(s) £000's % +/‐ % % %

Equities

UK Active Equity Brunel 369,875                    12.0 2.0 12.8 0.8 

Emerging Market Equities Brunel 162,094                    6.5 1.5 5.6 ‐0.9  

Global High Alpha Equities Brunel 373,547                    13.5 2.0 12.9 ‐0.6  

Sustainable Equities Brunel 331,605                    13.0 2.0 11.5 ‐1.5  

Passive Developed Equities (Hdg) Brunel ‐ LGIM 93,297                       0.0 0.0 3.2 3.2 

Passive Developed Eq Paris Aligned  Brunel ‐ LGIM 284,684                    10.0 2.0 9.9 ‐0.1  

Total Asset Class 1,615,102                55.0 3.0 55.9 0.9 

Fixed Interest

Multi‐Asset Credit Brunel 181,857                    7.5 1.0 6.3 ‐1.2  

Sterling Corporate Bonds Brunel 299,365                    14.5 1.5 10.4 ‐4.1  

Total Asset Class 481,222                    22.0 2.0 16.7 ‐5.3 

Alternatives

Diversifying Returns Fund Brunel 224,534                    0.0 10.0 7.8 7.8 

UK Property Brunel 243,475                    7.5 1.0 8.4 0.9 

International Property Brunel 54,933                       2.5 1.0 1.9 ‐0.6  

Infrastructure Brunel 85,336                       5.0 1.0 3.0 ‐2.0  

Private Equity Brunel 52,901                       3.0 1.0 1.8 ‐1.2  

Private Debt Golub/Arcmont/Brunel 105,317                    5.0 1.0 3.6 ‐1.4  

Venture Capital Yorkshire Fund Managers/TVP 3,842                         0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 

Cash In‐house Cash/Fund Manager Cash 20,824                       0.0 0.5 0.7 0.7 

Total Asset Class 791,162                    23.0 2.0 27.4 4.4 

Gloucestershire Pension Fund Total 2,887,486                100.0 0.0 100.0

 Moving further away from target
 Moving closer to target
 Stable against target

P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Local Government Pension Scheme 

 

 

 
 

Gloucestershire Pension Fund  
Shire Hall 

Westgate Street 
Gloucester, GL1 2TG 

Fax: 01452 425862 
Email: matthew.trebilcock@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

 

 
 

Please ask for: Matthew Trebilcock 

 

Telephone: 01452 328920 
 

 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
Re: Local Government Pension Scheme (England and Wales): Governance and reporting of climate change 
risks Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the proposed regulations on governance and reporting 
of climate risks within the LGPS.  
 
The Gloucestershire Pension Fund supports action to address climate-related risks and welcomes the proposals 
being brought forward.  
 
Our more detailed and specific comments are outlined below:  
 
Question 1: Do you agree with our proposed requirements in relation to governance?  
The Pensions Committee welcomes the responsibility to establish and maintain, on an ongoing basis, oversight 
of climate related risks and opportunities, and to monitor those who are undertaking climate-related 
governance activities on behalf of the Fund. We note that this should include maintaining oversight of the 
activities undertaken by the pool (in our case, the Brunel Pension Partnership) on behalf of the Fund. 
 
The Committee already takes an active role in monitoring how the Fund manages climate-related risks. The 
carbon footprint (Weighted Average Carbon Intensity) of the Fund’s investments is measured and reported to 
the Committee on an annual basis.   
 
 
Question 2: Do you agree with our proposed requirements in relation to strategy?  
The Investment Strategy and the Funding Strategy Statements are the two most important of the policies that 
must be maintained by the Fund. The Investment Strategy Statement already includes policies on how we 
address and manage climate-related risks within the strategy. The 2022 Triennial Valuation also includes 
actuarial assumptions related to climate risk, and this will be factored into the Funding Strategy Statement.  
 
We therefore support the proposed requirements in relation to strategy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LGF Pensions Team 
Department for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities 
2nd Floor, Fry Building 
2 Marsham Street 
London 
SW1P 4DF 

Page 71

mailto:matthew.trebilcock@gloucestershire.gov.uk


2 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Question 3: Do you agree with our suggested requirements in relation to scenario analysis?  
We agree that as investment and funding decisions are made triennially in accordance with the valuation cycle, 
scenario analysis should feed into these decisions, and should therefore be incorporated into the valuation 
cycle and carried out at least every three years, as a minimum.  
 
We therefore support the proposals relating to scenario analysis. However, we would note, in relation to the 
proposal to carry out a scenario analysis in 2023/24, that this would fall mid-way between our statutory 
triennial valuations and it would be pragmatic to align the proposal to our triennial valuation schedule, next 
valuation date being April 2025.  
 
 
Question 4: Do you agree with our proposed requirements in relation to risk management? 
The Fund has in place a risk management strategy and climate risk is already included within the Funds 
detailed risk register. The detailed risk register is monitored quarterly by the Pensions Committee and also the 
Local Pensions Board. 
 
We therefore support the proposed requirements in relation to risk management. 
 
Question 5: Do you agree with our proposed requirements in relation to metrics?  
Metrics are important to ensure that climate-related risk is managed effectively. The Fund therefore supports 
the requirement for metrics to be published.  
 
In relation to the specific metrics proposed, we believe that Weighted Average Carbon Intensity (WACI) is the 
most effective measure of the Fund’s carbon footprint. We would support a requirement that WACI be 
specified as a required metric and should be used as a measure of the carbon footprint of Fund investments. 
 
Question 6: Do you agree with our proposed requirements in relation to targets?  
The Fund supports the requirement to set targets. The Fund has committed to achieve net zero by 2050 or 
sooner, which is aligned with our pool company (Brunel). 
 
Targets are essential to ensure that progress is being made in managing the impact of climate change and 
managing the Fund’s risk exposure. Therefore, we support the requirement to set targets. 
 
Question 7: Do you agree with our approach to reporting?  
 
The Fund supports the proposed reporting, but we think it is important to ensure that the report is 
understandable by fund members and not too technical in its nature. We believe there needs to a balance and 
would support there being a degree of flexibility around achieving this. 
 
Question 8: Do you agree with our proposals on the Scheme Climate Risk Report?  
We support the provision of aggregated scheme data. In line with our response to question 5, we would 
support the use of WACI as a key measure of carbon footprint. This should be easy to aggregate on a scheme 
basis using a weighted average of each individual Fund’s WACI based on the value of their assets covered.  
 
However, in compiling a scheme report, DLUHC will need to ensure that the definitions and methodologies 
used are consistent. In addition, changes in strategic asset allocation may give rise to confusing messages, 
where apparent shifts in carbon footprint or Paris alignment data are the result of different reporting 
methodologies rather than a real improvement or decline.  
 
 

Page 72



3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Question 9: Do you have any comments on the role of the LGPS asset pools in delivering the requirements?  
Our pool company (Brunel) will be a key partner in delivering on the provision of the required metrics. The 
data that we have published previously has been provided by Brunel, and they also provided a service in 
providing metrics on non-pooled listed equity assets, up to the point when our listed assets were fully 
transitioned. 
 
We believe it is up to each individual fund to set its own strategy and processed for the management and 
monitoring of climate related risks, and for the pool companies to deliver their clients’ strategies. This will 
clearly require a high level of partnership and co-operation, and we believe that Brunel’s policies and 
aspirations in this area are fully aligned with those of the Gloucestershire Fund. 
 
Question 10: Do you agree with our proposed approach to guidance?  
We agree that a template would be useful, and that common metrics are required, but we would suggest that 
some degree of flexibility is required for individual Funds to report on their activities in a way that is 
meaningful for their fund members and key stakeholders. 
 
Question 11: Do you agree with our proposed approach to knowledge, skills and advice?  
We agree that Pension Committees need to have appropriate knowledge and skills in relation to climate 
change and climate risk. This would be best addressed alongside the general requirements for knowledge and 
skills covering all the aspects of the management of the Fund.  
 
There is already considerable expertise and knowledge in relation to climate risk across administering 
authorities, pool companies and appointed advisors, and we would expect this to be utilised by Committees in 
setting and reviewing strategy. The regulatory requirements that already exist require administering 
authorities to take proper advice. Where required, either the pool company or the administering authority can 
seek external advice and is likely to need external support in the provision of the required metrics and scenario 
analysis proposed. We would urge that regulations should not be too prescriptive on how administering 
authorities ensure that proper advice is provided.  
 
Question 12: Do you have any comments on the impact of our proposals on protected groups and on how 
any negative impacts may be mitigated?  
The Fund supports the principle that reports should be provided in accessible formats. 

 
Yours faithfully, 

 
Cllr Lynden Stowe 
Chair of Gloucestershire Pension Fund Pensions Committee 

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Pension Administration Summary Performance  

 

Table 1 – Summary Performance 

 

Service Target 2018/19 
Actual 

2019/20 
Actual 

2020/21 
Actual 

2021/22 
Actual 

2022/23 to 
30/09/2022 

(previous 
quarter) 

Estimates to 
employees (15 
days) 

90% 96% 98% 90% 75% 75% (58) 

Retirements and 
lump sums (15 
days) 

90% 69% 61% 80% 64% 38% (31) 

Refunds Paid (15 
days) 

90% 98% 99% 93% 63% 69% (73) 

Death Grants Paid 
(8 days) 

90% 82% 67% 70% 51% 33% (21) 

Annual Benefits 
Statements issued 
within the 
statutory 
deadline 

100% 100% see 
note 1 

100% see 
note 1 

100% see 
note 1 

100% see 
note 1 

100% see 
note 1 

“Transfers Out” 
Paid (15 days) 

90% 98% 99% 97% 96% 90% (92) 

 

Table 2 – 2022/23 Performance to 30 September 2022 

Service Standards 
– Processing 
tasks within 
internal targets 

Target 
Achievement  

No. 
Processed 
(previous 
quarters) 

No. 
processed 
on time 
(previous 
quarters) 

Actual 
achievement 
(previous quarters) 

Average 
days 
taken 
(averaging 
all cases) 
 

Average days 
taken 
(averaging 
cases 
exceeding 
target ONLY) 

Estimates to 
employees (15 
days) 

90% 350 (155) 262 (90) 75% (58) 13 (14) not available 

Retirements and 
lump sums (15 
days) 

90% 550 (244) 209 (76)  38% (31) 17 (18) 22 (23) 

Refunds Paid (15 
days) 

90% 248 (132) 172 (96) 69 (73) 14 (14) 18 (18) 

Death Grants Paid 
(8 days) 

90% 55 (24) 18 (5) 33% (21) 14 (14) 18 (16) 

2021/22 Annual 
Benefits 
Statements 
issued within the 
statutory 
deadline 

100% 34,081 34,081 100% see note 
1 

N/A N/A 

“Transfers Out” 
Paid (15 days) 

90% 123 (59) 111 (54) 90% (92) 8 (8) 23 (29) 

Page 75



2 

Table 2 – 2021/22 Performance (full year) 

Service Standards 
– Processing 
tasks within 
internal targets 

Target 
Achievement  

No. 
Processed 
 

No. 
processed 
on time 
 

Actual 
achievement 
 

Average 
days 
taken 
(averaging 
all cases) 
 

Average days 
taken 
(averaging 
cases 
exceeding 
target ONLY) 

Estimates to 
employees (15 
days) 

90% 699 523 75% 12 not available 

Retirements and 
lump sums (15 
days) 

90% 968 624 64% 12 19 

Refunds Paid (15 
days) 

90% 504 320 63% 14 20 

Death Grants Paid 
(8 days) 

90% 74 38 51% 10 14 

2020/21 Annual 
Benefits 
Statements 
issued within the 
statutory 
deadline 

100% 34,265 34,265 100% N/A N/A 

“Transfers Out” 
Paid (15 days) 

90% 198 191 96% 6 35 

 

2020/21 Performance (full year) 

Service 
Standards – 
Processing 
tasks within 
internal targets 

Target 
Achievement  

No. 
Processed 

No. 
processed 
on time 

Actual 
achievement 

Average 
days 
taken 
(averaging 
all cases) 

Average days 
taken 
(averaging 
cases 
exceeding 
target ONLY) 

Estimates to 
employees (15 
days) 

90% 534 482 90% 9 not available 

Retirements 
and lump sums 
(15 days) 

90% 872 701 80% 12 19 

Refunds Paid 
(15 days) 

90% 424 395 93% 10 20 

Death Grants 
Paid (8 days) 

90% 89 62 70% 10 17 

2019/20 
Annual 
Benefits 
Statements 
issued within 
the statutory 
deadline 

100% 34,434 see 
note 1 

34,434 see 
note 1 

100% see note 
1 

N/A N/A 

“Transfers Out” 
Paid (15 days) 

90% 136 132 97% 6 22 

 

Page 76



3 

2019/20 Performance (full year) 

Service 
Standards – 
Processing 
tasks within 
internal targets 

Target 
Achievement  

No. 
Processed 

No. 
processed 
on time 

Actual 
achievement 

Average 
days 
taken 
(averaging 
all cases) 

Average days 
taken 
(averaging 
cases 
exceeding 
target ONLY) 

Estimates to 
employees (15 
days) 

90% 739 724 98% 8 not available 

Retirements 
and lump sums 
(15 days) 

90% 983 603 61% 13 19 

Refunds Paid 
(15 days) 

90% 649 641 99% 7 23 

Death Grants 
Paid (8 days) 

90% 76 51 67% 7 10 

2018/19 
Annual 
Benefits 
Statements 
issued within 
the statutory 
deadline 

100% 34,167 see 
note 1 

34,167 see 
note 1 

100% N/A N/A 

“Transfers Out” 
Paid (15 days) 

90% 194 192 99% 4 16 

 

2018/19 Performance (full year) 

Service Standards – 
Processing tasks within 
internal targets 

Target 
Achievement 

No. Processed No. 
processed on 
time 

Actual 
achievement 

Average 
days 
taken 

Estimates to employees (15 
days) 

90% 615 587 96% 7 

Retirements and lump sums 
(15 days) 

90% 858 592 69% 13 

Refunds Paid (15 days) 90% 620 609 98% 7 

Death Grants Paid (8 days) 90% 79 65 82% 7 

2017/18 Annual Benefits 
Statements issued within the 
statutory deadline 

100% 32,817 see 
note 1 

32,817 see 
note 1 

100% see note 
1 

N/A 

“Transfers Out” Paid (15 
days) 

90% 147 144 98 5 

 

 

Note 1 - Regarding Annual Benefits Statements, all of the year end returns from all employers were 

received by the Administration Team within the statutory deadline. All returns were matched to the 

member records held within the Administration team, and where a definitive match was made, 100% 

of the Annual Benefit Statements were distributed to active and deferred members by the statutory 

deadline. 

 

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



  

  

Review of Administration (Structure and 
Efficiency) and reportable KPIs for 
Gloucester Pension Fund 
 

 

 

 

  
 

Prepared for: Matthew Trebilcock, Head of Pensions, Gloucestershire 
Pension Fund 

Prepared by: Daniel Kanaris, Senior Public Sector Consultant  

Date: 25 November 2022 
 

 

 

  
  

 
 

Page 79



Review of Administration (Structure and Efficiency) and reportable KPIs for Gloucester Pension Fund | Introduction 
 
 

  
2  Aon
 

Introduction 

We have prepared this paper as we have been asked to 
review the administration arrangements of the Gloucestershire 
Pension Fund (the “Fund”). The scope of the review is based 
on the requirements identified by the Fund. 

This paper sets out the approach and timescales for undertaking this 
review of key administration processes. The purpose of the exercise is to: 

▪ Carry out a review of the current organisational structure of the 
administration team;  

▪ Make recommendations to ensure the team can meet operational 
requirements and deal effectively with the increasing complexities of 
administration both current and in light of future known legislative 
changes; and; 

▪ Consider the efficiency of the administration team, through observing key 
processes and making recommendations to deliver efficiencies to help 
the team meet their performance standards outlined in the Pensions 
Administration Strategy. 

Where we identify any areas that can be improved, we will make suitable 
recommendations for changes that need to be made.  

We have carried out several reviews of administration services for other 
LGPS administering authorities and will bring the experience of how others 
operate and achieve high performance to your review, as well as our own 
expertise including that from specialists across Aon (many of whom used to 
work within LGPS administration teams and hence have direct experience).  

Carrying out this review will provide the Fund with an appropriate level of 
assurance around its administration processes, as well as helping to 
identify: 

▪ areas of risk and 

▪ potential areas of improvement  

that may merit further consideration. 

We set out below some more detail on our approach for this review across 
each of the relevant areas. 

 

 

Contents 

Introduction 2

Scope of Administration Review 3

 
 

Page 80



 

 

Scope of the Review 

The recent Governance Review of the Gloucester Fund, and subsequent 
discussions, highlighted some challenges in relation to the Fund’s 
administration. Tying in to the review of the Administration Strategy 
recommended in that review, the Fund is now undertaking a specific review 
of the Administration of the Fund, the aim of which is to provide assurance 
that the administration team is both structured and functioning effectively, in 
line with the Fund’s objectives (as described in the Fund’s strategies) and 
overriding legal requirements. Where we identify as part of the review any 
areas that can be improved, we will also make suitable recommendations 
for such improvements. 

The review will result in a final report which will include a number of 
observations (including areas we consider to be best practice) and 
recommendations. The recommendations will be backed up with a 
description of what we observed and a further explanation of our 
recommendation.  

We will also identify any areas we observe where we consider the standard 
being delivered by the team means that the Fund is at risk of failing to 
deliver legal requirements or could result in other serious issues or errors. 

Our review will consist of two main areas: a review of the administration 
team structure; and a review of the administration team’s efficiency.   

 

Administration Team Structure Review 
This review aims to inform our considerations on whether the 
administration team structure is likely to meet the service’s aspiration and 
objectives of the Fund.  Note that this review will focus on the 
administration team so any finance, accounting or governance teams etc. 
will not be in scope for this work, but we would be happy to bring these into 
scope if needed. Our review of the administration team includes:  

▪ assessing the numbers of staff allocated to carry out certain functions 
and commenting on whether they seem appropriate. In assessing this, if 
needed we can provide more detailed analysis on expected staffing 
levels based on the workloads the team is faced with 

▪ reviewing the levels of management in the structure; and 

▪ consideration of role profiles to determine where responsibilities lie 

We will then highlight any positive features and make recommendations for 
changes where we recognise potential challenges in the structure.  

We will be using the following information to conduct our analysis:  

▪ The current administration team structure chart(s) provided by the Fund, 
as well as information on job profiles, team responsibilities, KPI statistics 
and the aspirations and objectives for the service.  

Page 81



 

 

▪ Team responsibilities matrix provided by the Fund. 

▪ Fact finding discussion with the Fund’s management team / officers.  

▪ Results of Aon’s recent LGPS survey on organisational structures – this 
research resulted in responses from 30 LGPS administering authorities 
covering 32 funds and 1,260 full time equivalent (FTE) roles.  The survey 
showed the number of roles allocated to certain functions within 
administering authority investment, governance and administration 
teams.  

   We will also draw on our previous experience and expertise in 
administration, governance and investment matters more generally in 
relation to the LGPS, in particular, the increasing level of governance 
requirements and scrutiny. In doing this we note that a number of members 
of our team have worked for administering authorities and we have recently 
carried out similar organisational and efficiency reviews for a number of 
other LGPS administering authorities. 

 

Administration Efficiency Review 
This review will be carried out with an objective to ascertain whether there 
are any clear efficiencies which could be gained by amending current 
practices with a view to being better placed to meet the Fund's objectives, 
as described in the Fund's strategies, and overriding legal requirements.  

To carry out this part of the review, we will be observing some of the key 
administrative processes and conducting meetings with the team officers 
and senior managers.  

The report will set out our observations (including areas we consider to be 
best practice) and any recommendations we have. The recommendations 
will include a description of what we observed and an explanation of the 
recommendation, together with the benefits that will come with 
implementing it.  

 

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 
In conjunction with both reviews, we will also be reviewing the Fund’s 
current use of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), determining whether the 
current KPIs are the most appropriate and, if necessary, exploring use of a 
more realistic and appropriate KPI system. This may involve setting an 
achievable level of KPIs in the short term with the current processes / 
structure, together with a high-level action plan / timescale setting out how 
the KPIs would develop over time as the structure / resourcing / processes 
improve over time too.  Again, this element will draw on our experience of 
KPI setting / monitoring with other LGPS Funds. 

 

 

 

 

Page 82



 

 

Timing  
Our suggested timescale is as follows: 

Funds to provide information and data required by the review  December 2022

Project initiation meetings / discussions December 2022 / January 2023

Virtual/physical meetings with team officers/senior managers December 2022 / January 2023

Aon analyse information and start drafting report on findings February 2023

Onboarding of new Pensions Administration Manager (PAM) (Hopefully) March 2023

Progress update provided to Pensions Committee March 2023

Discuss report / findings with Fund’s management (including new PAM) March / April 2023

Aon provide final report  May 2023

Report provided to Pensions Committee June 2023 (PC)

 

 

 

   
    
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

Aon plc (NYSE:AON) exists to shape decisions for the better - to protect and enrich the lives of people 
around the world. Our colleagues provide our clients in over 120 countries with advice and solutions 
that give them the clarity and confidence to make better decisions to protect and grow their business. 

 

Copyright © 2022 Aon Solutions UK Limited and Aon Investments Limited. All rights reserved. aon.com. Aon Wealth 
Solutions’ business in the UK is provided by Aon Solutions UK Limited - registration number 4396810, or Aon 
Investments Limited – registration number 5913159, both of which are registered in England and Wales have their 
registered office at The Aon Centre, The Leadenhall Building, 122 Leadenhall Street, London EC3V 4AN. Tel: 020 
7623 5500. Aon Investments Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.  This document 
and any enclosures or attachments are prepared on the understanding that they are solely for the benefit of the 
addressee(s). Unless we provide express prior written consent no part of this document should be reproduced, 
distributed or communicated to anyone else and, in providing this document, we do not accept or assume any 
responsibility for any other purpose or to anyone other than the addressee(s) of this document. In this context, “we” 
includes any Aon Scheme Actuary appointed by you. To protect the confidential and proprietary information included 
in this document, it may not be disclosed or provided to any third parties without Aon’s prior written consent. 
 

 

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Business Plan 2022/23 
 

The following is an update on the Key Tasks/Work Plan which formed part of the agreed 

business plan for 2022/23.  

Comments on each topic are contained within the table. For the amber items, this 

represents that these activities are yet to commence, but these activities are scheduled to 

take place over multiple quarters: 

Governance 

Task 2021/22 2022/23 

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Review of Risk Register ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ - on 

agenda 

 

Approval of External Audit Plan  ✓    

Implement outcomes of the 

Funds Governance Review 

✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ - 

operating to 

workplan 

 

Review and approve Business 

Plan 

✓     

Annual review against The 

Pensions Regulators Code of 

Practise 

✓ - on the 

2022/23 

business 

plan 

    

Approval of audited Fund 

accounts 

  ✓ - draft 

accounts 

provided. 

Audit 

ongoing 

✓ - Audit 

opinion on 

agenda.   

 

Approval of Annual Report    ✓ - on 

agenda 

 

Review Policy Statements ✓  ✓ ✓ - ISS on 

agenda 

 

Training Needs Analysis    ✓ - 

Assessment 

undertaken. 

Results due 

in Q4 

 

Review Breaches log ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ - 

confirmation 

on agenda 

 

Monitor employer activity ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ - on 

agenda 

 

Page 85



 

 

 

Funding 

Task 2021/22 2022/23 

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Review of ongoing funding 

position 

✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ - on 

agenda 

 

Cash flow modelling    ✓ - on 

agenda. 

Ahead of 

schedule 

 

Review the Funding Strategy 

Statement 

  ✓-Brought 

to 

Committee 

1 quarter 

earlier 

✓ - 

Consultation 

with 

stakeholders 

undertaken 

 

 

Investment Management 

Task 2021/22 2022/23 

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Monitor Fund Performance ✓ ✓ ✓ - on 

agenda 

✓ - on 

agenda 

 

Responsible Investment 

Reporting 

 ✓  ✓ - on 

agenda 

 

Review the Funds Investment 

Strategy Statement 

 ✓ ✓ ✓ - on 

agenda 

 

Review the Funds Responsible 

Investment Policy 

   ✓ - activity 

commenced 

with 

workshop in 

Q3 

 

Review the recommendations 

of the Taskforce for Climate-

related Financial Disclosure 

(TCFD) and requirements for 

UK Stewardship code signatory 

status 

✓ - on the 

2022/23 

business 

plan 

x – awaiting 

consultation 

from DHLUC 

✓ - 

consultation 

on agenda. 

Workshop 

to be 

arranged to 

provide 

response 

✓ - 

Response to 

TCFD 

consultation 

completed. 

Workshop 

undertaken 

in Q3 

 

Page 86



 

 

 

 

Administration 

Task 2021/22 2022/23 

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Issue Annual Benefit 

Statements to active and 

deferred members 

  ✓ - 

completed 

  

P60’s distributed to pensioner 

members 

 ✓ - 

completed 

   

Recruitment of agreed 

additional resources 

 ✓ ✓ ✓ - 

ongoing 

 

Annual pension in payment and 

CARE accrual increase exercise 

 ✓ - 

completed 

   

Annual submission of HMRC 

Event report 

✓ - 

completed 

    

Issue notices to employees for 

breaches of HMRC Annual 

Allowance limits 

   ✓ - 

Completed 

 

Provision of data to actuary to 

produce financial accounting 

required for employer accounts 

 ✓ ✓ ✓ - 

Completed 

 

Reconciliation of membership 

data for all employers 

✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ - 

ongoing 

 

Review and correct data errors   ✓ ✓ - 

ongoing 

 

Process and reconcile 

membership pay and 

contribution data for year end 

 ✓ ✓ ✓ - 

ongoing 

 

Data quality assessment for the 

Pensions Regulator 

  ✓ - 

completed 

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 87



 

Core Projects for 2022/23 

 

 

1) 2022 Actuarial Valuation and associated tasks 

What is it?  

It is the formal actuarial valuation of the Fund detailing the solvency position and other financial 
metrics. It is a legal requirement of the LGPS Regulations. It determines the contribution rates 
payable by the employers to fund the cost of benefits and make good any existing shortfalls as set 
out in the separate Funding Strategy Statement. This is considered in conjunction with an 
employer risk management assessment. The exercise will include cash flow projections that can 
be used to prepare the Funds cash management and investment strategy.  

Timescales and Stages 

Effective date 31 March 2022 

Initial whole Fund results (expected) 2022/23 Q2 

Individual Employer results (expected) 2022/23 Q3  

Deadline for agreement of all contributions and sign-off 31 March 2023 

Resource and Budget Implications 

The exercise will be performed by the Funds Actuary and it will determine contribution 
requirements for all participating employers from 1 April 2023. It is a major exercise for the Fund 
and will take considerable resource from the Administration and Finance teams over 2022/23. 
Employers will be formally consulted on the funding strategy as part of the process. The Fund 
Actuary's costs in relation to this exercise are included in the 2022/23 budget. 

Current Status  

 

Current activity 

Page 88



 

 

 

 

Page 89



 

 

 

2) Review pensions administration system contract  

 

What is it?  

The Fund has a contract with Aquila Heywood in relation to their Altair administration system 
which expires in 2023. The Fund have access to the LGPS National Frameworks, which includes a 
framework for pensions administration systems. It is envisaged that the Fund would make use of 
this framework.  

Should a new software supplier be appointed, there will be a significant amount of work required 
to migrate to the new system.  

Timescales and Stages  

Finalise national framework for pensions administration system 2020/21 Q1  

Conduct tender for CPF administration system 2022/23 Q2 to Q4  

Transition to new administration system if required June 2023  

Resource and Budget Implications  

To be led by the Head of Pensions and Pension Administration Manager. If transition to a new 
system is required, there are likely to be significant transition costs and the ongoing cost for 
systems included in the 2022/23 budget will probably change. 

Current Status  

 

Current Activity 

Project planning initiated with GCC procurement team 

1. Business case being prepared regarding internal signing off process. Target completion by 

31 January 2023 

Page 90



2. Access to LGPS national framework confirmed possible, if required. - Completed 

3. Full business case with proposals is currently being prepared for consideration in 

accordance with the internal process identified in Step 1 by 28 February 2023. 

 

 

 

 

3) Pensions Dashboard (including a Data Improvement Strategy) 

 

What is it?  

The Pensions Dashboard is a Government initiative first announced in the Budget 2016. The idea 
behind the Dashboard is to allow all pension savers in the UK access to view the values of all of 
their pension pots, including state pension, through one central platform. A consultation was 
undertaken by Government in early 2019 which sought views on the potential phasing of the 
introduction of the pensions dashboards as well as how the architecture, funding and governance 
arrangements would work. The legislative requirements to participate in the Pension Dashboard 
for schemes (including public sector schemes) was launched by DWP in February 2022. The actual 
timescales that will apply to public sector pension schemes are not yet known so the timescales 
below are estimated. However, in preparation for this, the Fund will embark on producing a Data 
Improvement Strategy and plan. 

Timescales and Stages  

Data Improvement Strategy 2022/23 Q2 to Q3  

Data Improvement Plan 2022/23 Q4 

Potential Pension Dashboard launch 2023/24  

Resource and Budget Implications  

The Data Improvement Strategy and Plan will be led by the Head of Pensions and the Pensions 
Administration Manager. Resource and budget implications cannot be determined until more 
detail is available, especially around the Pensions Dashboard. 

Current Status  

 

Current Activity 

We have commenced the Pensions Dashboards Readiness Assessment. The output 

from this exercise, will provide summary results that will help us understand the quality 

of our data and what actions we need to take to get ready for Pensions Dashboards. 

The summary results will include a score for each of the following areas: 

• ‘Find’ data: 

o Checks on potential matching fields (name, date of birth, address) to determine 

whether the data you hold is present, valid and accurate 

o Checking for members which would currently be duplicate matches 

o Checking for undecided leavers and frozen refunds 

Page 91



• ‘View’ data: 

o Check that employment data is available to be returned to the Pensions 

Dashboards for each member employment 

o Check that Accrued Retirement Income is available for each member employment 

o Check that Estimated Retirement Income is available for each member 

employment 

This assessment will be used to inform the data improvement strategy and plan, which also forms 
part of the governance work plan. 

 

 

4) McCloud  

 

What is it?  

The McCloud case has highlighted that the introduction of the new CARE schemes for Firefighters 
and Judges in April 2015 were unlawful. This impacts on other public service pension schemes 
including the LGPS where the new CARE scheme from April 2014 included a statutory underpin for 
older members. Remedies are being worked through by Government to remove the inequality in 
the schemes, which will result in changes to scheme benefits some of which will be retrospective. 
From an administrative perspective the impact of McCloud will result in a change to how benefits 
are calculated for a large number of scheme members including members who have left. This is 
likely to significantly impact on administration process and systems as well as requiring a robust 
communication exercise with employers and scheme members. The additional resource/system 
requirements are likely to be significant. The remediation is subject to a Public Service Pensions 
and Judicial Offices Bill, which is currently laid before parliament. 

Timescales and Stages  

McCloud planning/impact analysis 2022/23 Q1 ongoing 

Timescales will be updated as more information becomes available.  

Resource and Budget Implications  

It will impact across all of the Administration Team. No estimated allowance for additional 
resource has been included in the 2022/23 budget at this time. Support from the pensions 
administration software provider is likely to require additional budget is also likely to be needed in 
future years as the impact is realised. 

Current Status  

 

Current Activity 

Public Service Pensions and Judicial Offices Bill now laid in statue. 

Awaiting further guidance from DHLUC on the implementation of the bill in respect of LGPS. 

 

Page 92



   
  

Gloucestershire Pension Fund   

Governance Review – Work Plan  
This action plan builds on the recommendations set out in our Governance Review report dated 9 June 2021. This is designed to be a high-level action plan setting 

out the key actions and we have added timescales to assist the Fund in monitoring progress of these actions on an ongoing basis.   

Action  Reason   Timescales  

 

Current 
action/comment 

Review of PC Constitution - produce 

report to take to  
September 2021 PC meeting with 
proposal   

Consider whether the Committee could have further  
representation from other employers and scheme members in the  
Fund. Also need to consider voting rights of these representatives.   

Completed  ✓ - agreed proposals 
taken to Constitution in 
January 2022 at Council in 
February 2022 

Review of duties of the PC  The majority of the duties of the PC are investment focused.  
Consider including a number of non-investment duties as well.  

Action is ultimately to update the PC Terms of Reference  

Completed  ✓ - agreed proposals 
taken to Constitution in 
January 2022 at Council in 
February 2022 

Develop a Fund Conflict of  
Interest Policy  

No policy currently in place.  

Fund currently relies on the Council's Conflicts of Interest Policy  

Completed  ✓ - agreed by 
Committee in September 
2021 

Develop a Fund Risk  
Management Policy  

No policy currently in place.  

Develop a policy to provide a clearer risk management framework 
(incorporating existing risk register)  

Completed  ✓ - agreed by 
Committee in December 
2021 

Review the Fund's Breaches log  Ensure breaches log covers all expected areas, and ensure this is 
populated and taken to PC and PB for information.  

Completed Policy was agreed by 
Committee in December 
2021. New log adopted 
Jan 2022, thereby first 
reportable period will be 
31 March 2022 

Review the Fund's Breaches of  
Law Procedure  

We understand that this was last reviewed in 2016.  Completed  ✓ - agreed by 
Committee in December 
2021 

P
age 93



   
  

 Governance Review policy summary  2  
  

  

Action  Reason   Timescales  

 

Current 
action/comment 

Update the Administering  
Authority's Discretionary Policy  

Current policy dates back to September 1999  

Due to the age of the current policy this is effectively going to be a 
brand-new policy given that so much has changed since the current 
policy was written.  

Completed  ✓ - agreed by 
Committee in December 
2021 

Update the Fund's Governance  
Compliance Statement and  
Policy  

The current Compliance Statement is dated July 2017. We would 

anticipate this document being reviewed in conjunction with the 

Governance Policy statement which was last reviewed in February 

2020.  

We understand that an updated Compliance Statement has been 
drafted so we assume that our input would be to review the draft 
updated policy  

Completed ✓ - agreed by 
Committee in September 
2022 

Review of Scheme of Delegation  Review Council’s Scheme of Delegation to ensure that pension fund 

matters are covered.  

Consider this in conjunction with recommendation from SAB Good 
Governance review regarding LGPS senior officer.  

Completed ✓ - agreed by 
Committee in September 
2022 

Review the Fund's  
Communications Policy  

We understand that a review was due to be undertaken in  
2019/20 but this did not take place  

Commenced  Initial work was 
commenced with 
Committee/Board 
workshop event held in 
November 2022 

Review the Fund's  
Administration Strategy  

Last reviewed in 2017  Commenced Review has commenced 
with scope looking at 
processes/resources/IT 
and KPI’s 

P
age 94



   
  

 Governance Review policy summary  3  
  

Review the Fund's Investment  
Strategy Statement  

Our report suggested some potential enhancements to the current 
policy in relation to Responsible Investment.  

As per Fund's 
business plan  

SAA review undertaken 
and ISS on agenda for 
approval in December 
2022. Development of 
Responsible Investment 
Policy commenced with 
workshop event held in 
November 2022. 

Action  Reason   Timescales  

 

Current 
action/comment 

Develop a Fund Business  
Continuity Policy / Plan  

Expected to be included in TPR New Code.   

We understand that the Fund currently relies on the Council's approach 
to Business Continuity.  

Q3 2022/23  Operational business 
continuity plan as 
required by GCC has 
been completed. Gap 
analysis for the specific 
Fund requirements now 
needs to be undertaken 

Develop a Fund Cyber Strategy  Expected to be included in TPR New Code.   

We understand that the Fund currently relies on the Council's approach 
to Cyber Security.  

Q4 2022 – Q1 2023   

Carrying out a review of Fund's 

practices against TPR's New  
Code of Practice    

As part of best practice, we would expect the Administering Authority 
to carry out a regular review of their practices against the New Code.  

Awaiting code of 
practice from TPR  

On hold 

Develop a Fund Data  
Improvement Policy  

We understand that the Fund do the common / scheme specific 
scoring through Aquila Heywood but currently no formal data 
improvement policy or plan is in place. We recommend that having a 
Data Improvement Policy is best practice.  

Forms part of core 
projects for 2022/23 
business plan 

Initial evaluation of data 
requirements for 
Pensions Dashboard 
being undertaken. This 
will be used as a basis for 
Policy. 

Develop a Fund Data  
Improvement Plan  

  Forms part of core 
projects for 2022/23 
business plan  

Initial evaluation of data 
requirements for 
Pensions Dashboard 

P
age 95



   
  

 Governance Review policy summary  4  
  

being undertaken. This 
will be used as a basis for 
the Plan. 

Implementation of new Training  
Strategy  

A Training Strategy was put in place in April 2021. Ensure successful 

implementation of this Strategy and the associated training plans.  

As part of this we would recommend that a training needs analysis is 
carried out to identify any gaps.  

Completed ✓ - training needs 
analysis undertaken and 
training plan established 
and agreed by 
Committee in September 
2021.  
 
 

Action  Reason   Timescales  

 

Current 
action/comment 

Development of Fund's own 

identity separate from the  
Council  

This could include the Fund having different branding to the Council.  

Creation of a separate Fund website or more distinctly separate section 
within the Council's website.  

Q1 2023/24  

Ensuring all of the Fund's policies 
and procedures are easy to access 
from Fund's website / section of 
Council's website  

Currently not all of the Fund's policies and procedures are easy to find 
on the Fund's section of the Council's website  

Q1 2023/24  

Increase the number of Pension  
Board meetings each year  

We don't think that the current approach of having two meetings a year 

is sufficient.  

We note that in the March 2021 meeting it was proposed that the PB 
moves to quarterly meetings.  

Completed   

  

  

  

P
age 96



P
age 97



Commercial in confidence

P
age 98



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 99



Commercial in confidence

•

• •

•

•

•

P
age 100



Commercial in confidence

P
age 101



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 102



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 103



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 104



Commercial in confidence

P
age 105



Commercial in confidence









P
age 106



Commercial in confidence









P
age 107



Commercial in confidence









P
age 108



Commercial in confidence

P
age 109



Commercial in confidence

P
age 110



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 111



Commercial in confidence

P
age 112



Commercial in confidence

Transparency report 2020 
(grantthornton.co.uk)

P
age 113



Commercial in confidence

P
age 114



P
age 115



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 116



Commercial in confidence

P
age 117



Commercial in confidence



P
age 118



Commercial in confidence

P
age 119



Commercial in confidence

P
age 120



Commercial in confidence





















P
age 121



Commercial in confidence



P
age 122



Commercial in confidence



P
age 123



Commercial in confidence









P
age 124



Commercial in confidence

















P
age 125



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 126



Commercial in confidence







P
age 127



Commercial in confidence











P
age 128



Commercial in confidence



















P
age 129



Commercial in confidence





































P
age 130



P
age 131



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Agenda Item 8 

 

Pension Committee 
8 December 2022 

 

Risk Register 
 

Report of the Head of Pensions 
 
 

Summary 
 
In accordance with the Risk Management policy agreed by Committee on 3 December 2021, 
progress and activity in managing risks will continue to be monitored and recorded on a risk 
register and key information will be provided on a quarterly basis to the Pension Committee 
and the Pension Board as part of the regular update reports on governance, investments 
and funding, and administration and communications.  The reporting information will 
include as a minimum: 
 

o a summarised version of the risk register   
o a summary of the main changes since the previous report 
o the Fund’s risk dashboard showing the score of all existing risks and any changes as 

part of that dashboard. 
 

Risk Evaluation 
 
The evaluation of risks is based on the Gloucestershire County Council Risk Scoring Matrix 
customized to the needs of the Fund. The assessment matrix and interpretation of risk 
exposure is detailed below. These elements are fully defined in the Risk Management Policy 
of the Fund, and for completeness I attach at appendix 1 to this report the full details   

 

Assessment of risk:               

Im
p

ac
t 

(c
o

n
se

q
u

en
ce

s)
 Insignificant Low Low Low Low Low 

    

Minor Medium Medium Low Low Low 
    

Moderate High Medium Medium Low Low 
    

Major High High Medium Medium Low 
    

Critical High High High Medium Low 
    

    
Almost 
certain 

Highly 
likely 

Probable Possible Rare 
    

    >90% 76%-90% 41% - 75% 10% - 40% <10%     

    Likelihood (probability) of risk happening     

                  

Page 133

Agenda Item 8



 

Agenda Item 8 

 

Interpretation of risk exposure     

  Level of risk Level of concern Action required   

  

High 
Very concerned, major 
consequences and high 
likelihood of happening 

Unacceptable level of risk exposure 
which requires immediate corrective 
action to be taken.  Regular monitoring 
required; at least monthly   

  

Medium 
Concerned, moderate 
consequences and possible 
occurrence 

Acceptable level of risk exposure 
subject to regular active monitoring 
measures, at least quarterly.   

  

Green 
Content, insignificant 
consequences  

Acceptable level of risk exposure 
subject to regular active monitoring 
measures, at least annually.   

Risk Register Review 

As part of the agreed risk management policy the risk register will provide a dashboard 
(heatmap) overview of the risks in the following 3 categories: 

• Governance 

• Funding & Investment (includes accounting & audit) 

• Operational 

The risk register including the dashboard is attached as appendix 2 to this report. 

As part of the ongoing exercise the risks have been reviewed against previous rating and there 
are no material changes to risk levels since the Committee considered the risk register at its 
last meeting in September 2022. There are additional comments added to a number of risks 
in the further action column to advise current activities. 

The following risks remain above their target and will remain to be tracked through the 
dashboard: 

Highlighted Risks 

o Governance 
o Risk 2 - elevated until the successful deployment of the training strategy/plan 

has been delivered and the assessment of knowledge repeated. 
o Risk 3 – elevated as per risk 2 above. 

 

o Funding & Investment 
o Risk 6 – risk remains elevated and will be reviewed once the inflation and 

interest rate risk exposure of the Fund has been reviewed, as part of the 
valuation and strategy review process. 

o Risk 8 – increased until the valuation process has been concluded and the 
potential impact reconsidered in the overall Fund context. Although this risk 
remains within its overall risk status. 

 

o Operational (Administration & Communication) 
o Risk 2, 3 & 6 – remain at an elevated level as the recruitment plan for the 

agreed team resources is still ongoing.  
o Risk 1 – remains elevated in relation to the potential impact of Covid 19. 

Page 134



 

Agenda Item 8 

 

 
 
Future development 
 
The risk register is a live document and will continue to evolve and be reviewed by Committee 
and Board each quarter. As part of the valuation process and as part of the proposed future 
development of the risk register, we will consider the way we evaluate and report the Funds 
risks to you.  
 
 
Recommendation 

That the Committee notes the Risk Register and the current elevated risks, as outlined in this 
report.  
 
Contact Officer 
 
Matthew Trebilcock – Head of Pensions (01452 328920) 
 

 

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank



Risk Evaluation and Likelihood and Impact Explanations

The following information outlines how risks are to be evaluated.  It is based on the Gloucestershire County Council Risk Scoring Matrix 
customised to the needs of the Fund

Assessment of risk:

Insignificant Low Low Low Low Low

Minor Medium Medium Low Low Low

Moderate High Medium Medium Low Low

Major High High Medium Medium Low

Critical High High High Medium Low

Almost certain Highly likely Probable Possible Rare
>90% 76%-90% 41% - 75% 10% - 40% <10%

Gloucestershire County Council's interpretation of risk exposure
Level of risk

High

Medium

Green

Criteria for assessing likelihood
potential timescale

Greater than 90%
76% to 90%

Probable 41% to 75%
10% to 40%
Less than 10%

Criteria for assessing impact
Critical Service disruption > 20 days

Critical Financial loss (relative to the size of the Fund)
Ministerial/Regulatory intervention
Public enquiry
Exceedingly negative national publicity

Major Service disruption 10-20 days 
Major Financial loss (relative to the size of the Fund)
Legal action almost certain and difficult to defend
Adverse national media coverage

Moderate Service Disruption 5-10 days
Moderate Financial loss (relative to the size of the Fund)
Legal action expected
Adverse local media coverage/lots of service user complaints

Minor Minor impact on service, typically between 1 to 4 days
Minor Financial loss (relative to the size of the Fund)
Non-compliance with regulations / standards or local procedures resulting in disciplinary action
Moderate volumes of service user complaints contained within the Fund

Insignificant Insignificant impact on service, typically no more than a couple of hours
Insignificant financial loss
Legal action possible but unlikely and defendable
Isolated service user complaints contained within the Fund

Some specific examples for each impact criteria:
Critical Impact on assets or liabilities changing funding level by more than 25% over a 1-month period

Delay in paying pensioners by more than 3 working days
Consistently missing both legal and Fund’s service delivery timeframes
Incorrect actual benefit calculations affecting >300 members
Formal DLUHC, Pension Regulator or Scheme Advisory Board (or other) intervention or exercise of powers. 

Major Impact on assets or liabilities changing funding level 15-25% over a 1-month period
Delay in paying pensioners by more than 2 working days
Missing some legal timescales and regularly missing the Fund’s service delivery timeframes
Incorrect actual benefit calculations affecting 200-300 members

Moderate Impact on assets or liabilities changing funding level by 10-15% over a 1-month period
Delay in paying pensioners by 1 working day
Meeting the majority of legal timescales but missing some of the Fund’s service delivery timeframes
Incorrect benefit calculations affecting 100-200 members

Minor Impact on assets or liabilities changing funding level by 5-10% over a 1-month period
Delay in paying pensioners by less than1 working days
Meeting the majority of legal and Fund’s service delivery timeframe
Incorrect benefit calculations affecting 50-100 members

Insignificant Impact on assets or liabilities changing funding level by up to 5% over a 1-month period
Meeting all legal but occasionally not meeting all the Fund’s service delivery timeframes
Incorrect benefit calculations affecting up to 50 members

Criteria for assessing the difference between the current and target risk exposures:

Unacceptable level of risk exposure which requires immediate 
corrective action to be taken.  Regular monitoring required; at least 
monthly

Once in 5 to less than 10 years
Possible

Almost certain Once in 1 to less than 3 years
Highly likely

Im
pa

ct
 (c

on
se

qu
en

ce
s)

Likelihood (probability) of risk happening

Description % of risk happening       OR

Once in 10 to less than 20 years

Acceptable level of risk exposure subject to regular active 
monitoring measures, at least quarterly.

Acceptable level of risk exposure subject to regular active 
monitoring measures, at least annually.

Once in 3 to less than 5 years

Concerned, moderate 
consequences and possible 
occurance

Content, insignificant 
consequences 

Level of concern
Very concerend, major 
consequences and high 
likelihood of happening

Action required

K
The current impact and likelihood of the risk are individually no more than 2 
classifications higher than the target, and the combined difference is no more than 3 
classifications higher than the target.

L
The current impact and likelihood of the risk are individually more than 2 
classifications higher than the target, and/or the combined difference is more than 3 
classifications higher than the target.

Rare Once in 20 or more years

Symbol Description

J The current impact and likelihood of the risk are equal to, or less than, the target 
impact and likelihood.

Page 137



This page is intentionally left blank



Risk Register
All Fund Risk Heat Map and Summary of Governance Risks Number of actual risks Number of target risks

9 13

10 9 6 10 11 12

3 2 6 7 8

5 4 1 3 4 5

8 7 1 2

Likelihood Likelihood

1

1

5 4

6 2 3 1

8 7
`

Governance Risks
Funding & Investment Risks (includes accounting and 

audit)

Im
p

a
c

t

Insignificant

Major

Critical

Minor

Moderate

Rare Possible Probable Highly likely

               Operational Risks

26 November 2022

Insignificant

Major

Critical
Key

New risks since the last reporting date are denoted with a blue and white 

border.

An arrow denotes a change in the risk exposure since the previous 

reporting date, with the arrow coming from the previous risk exposure.Minor

Moderate

Each risk is represented in the chart by a number in a square. 

- The number denotes the risk number on the risk register.

- The location of the square denotes the current risk exposure.

The background colour within the square denotes the target risk 

exposure.

Im
p

a
c

t

RareAlmost certain Almost certain Highly likely Probable Possible

0

11

20

0

6

25

P
age 139



Risk 

no:
Risk Overview (this will happen) Risk Description (if this happens)

Strategic 

objectives at 

risk (see 

above)

Current 

Impact

(see key)

Current 

Likelihood

(see key)

Current 

Risk 

Status

Internal controls in place

Target 

Impact

(see key)

Target 

Likelihood

(see key)

Target 

Risk 

Status

Date Not 

Met Target 

From

Expected 

Back on 

Target

Further Action and Owner Risk Manager
Next review 

date

Last 

Updated

1

Administering Authority unaware 

of structural changes in an 

employer’s membership (e.g. 

large fall in employee members, 

closing to new entrants)

- Impacts on achieving fully 

funded pension liabilities over the 

long term
Moderate Possible 1

1 - Close relationship with employers and communicate required 

standards, e.g. for submission of data

2 - Actuary may revise Rates and Adjustments certificate to increase 

employers conts between triennial valuations

Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
02/03/2023 26/11/2022

2

Lack of experience, knowledge, 

skills on the Pension Committee 

or Pension Board, and/or the lack 

of adequate training, resulting in a 

negative impact on governance 

arrangements within the 

Gloucestershire LGPS.

- High turnover of PC and/or 

board members

- Failure to take appropriate

advice

- Poor engagement /preparation /

commitment

- Poor oversight / lack of skills & 

knowledge

- Poor and ineffective decision

making processes

Moderate Probable 3

1 - Training Policy, Plan and monitoring in place for PC and PB 

members. Training needs assessment now undertaken which has 

informed an appropriate training plan

2 - Range of professional advisors covering Fund responsibilities 

guiding the PC, PB and officers in their responsibilities

Moderate Possible 1 K Current likelihood 1 too 

high

03/03/2022 Mar 2024

Delivery of training plan across the 

new cycle of Committee members. 

National Knowledge and Skills 

assessment will determine training 

effectiveness to date and be used to 

identify required areas of training to 

enhance knowledge. 

Head of 

Pension Fund
02/03/2023 26/11/2022

3

Lack of relevant expertise, 

knowledge, skills and resources at 

officer level in relation to 

administering the LGPS

- Non-compliance potentially 

resulting in inaccurate benefit

calculations

- Increase in customer 

dissatisfaction and decrease in 

KPIs

- Poor oversight / lack of officer 

skills & knowledge

- Poor and ineffective decision

making processes

Moderate Probable 3

1 - Training needs assessment carried out for each individual officer

2 - Annual training plan produced

3 - Subscription to the CIPFA K&S framework

4 - Appropriate qualified external advisers and consultants used when 

necessary

Moderate Possible 1 K Current likelihood 1 too 

high

03/03/2022 Mar 2023

Recruitment to posts within the senior 

leadership team will provide greater 

resilience and reduce key person risk. 

Technical expertise from Hymans 

Robertson is now being made 

available to senior pension staff to 

assist in complex case management

Head of 

Pension Fund
02/03/2023 26/11/2022

4

Actuarial or investment advice is 

not sought, or is not heeded, or 

proves to be insufficient in some 

way

- Inefficient management of the

Fund Moderate Possible 1

1 - Close contact maintained with specialist advisers

2 - Advice delivered via formal meetings involving elected members 

and recorded appropriately

3 - Actuarial advice is subject to professional requirements

Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
02/03/2023 26/11/2022

5

Administering Authority fail to 

commission the Actuary to carry 

out a termination valuation for a 

departing Admission Body.

- Inefficient management of the

Fund Moderate Possible 1

1 - Employers with Best Value contractors required to inform the 

Fund of forthcoming changes

2 - Contract periods of admission bodies monitored

3 - Regular monitoring of levels of active employees across all 

employers and further steps taken where necessary

Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
02/03/2023 26/11/2022

6
Failure to comply with the Myners’ 

Investment Principles

- Inefficient management of the

Fund Moderate Possible 1

1 - Compliance regularly reviewed as detailed in the Investment 

Strategy statement and Governance statement Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
02/03/2023 26/11/2022

7
Failure to comply with the General 

Data Protection Regulation 

- Increase in data breaches

- Negative publicity and

reputational damage

- Potential costs/fines.

- Complaints from members

Major Possible 3

1 - Guidance and support from GCC Information management team -

website now contains info to meet GDPR requirements 

2 - Internal audit confirmed arrangements are satisfactory

3 - Legal review update to GDPR Policy is being undertaken - 

November 2022

Major Possible 3 J
Legal review of the GDPR policy is 

underway to ensure it is fully 

compliant

Head of 

Pension Fund
02/03/2023 26/11/2022

8

Failure to protect the Pension 

Fund's key information and data 

as a result of exploited 

technological vulnerabilities 

facilitated through malicious 

attack, primarily from external 

sources.

- Inability to pay member benefits

- Member complaints

- Permanent / temporary loss of

member data

- Financial impact of restoring

systems

Major Possible 3

1 - Anti-malware and internet security software in place

2 - Patch management policies and procedures in place

3 - Compliance with PSN

4 - Internal and external ICT security testing takes place regularly

5 - Managing user privileges

Major Possible 3 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
02/03/2023 26/11/2022

9

Failing to adequately take account 

of, and monitor and report on, 

Environmental, Social and 

Governance ("ESG") factors, 

including Climate Change, in 

relation to the investment of the 

Funds’ assets

- Negative ESG implications 

- Financial loss
Moderate Possible 1

1 - Being a member of Brunel - ESG factors are integral to 

investment process

2 - ESG factors are considered for all Investment Manager 

appointments made by Brunel

3 - Robust process for on-going monitoring / reporting of ESG factors, 

so PC receives regular updates and assurance

4 - Adoption of Brunel Climate Change policy in January 2020

Moderate Possible 1 J

The Fund has commenced drafting a 

Responsible Investment policy as an 

outcome of the workshop held in 

November 2022.

Head of 

Pension Fund
02/03/2023 26/11/2022

10

Failure to internally hold personal 

data securely and keep pension 

records up-to-date and accurate

- Inefficient management of the

Fund

- Members potentially paid

incorrect benefits

- Risk of breaching GDPR 

Regulations

Moderate Possible 1

1 - Personal data and scanned member documents are maintained in 

a secure password controlled online system

2 - Documented procedures for maintaining pension records are in 

place and regularly reviewed within the admin team

3 - Procedures regularly reviewed by internal auditors

4 -Physical access controls in operation within the Pension Fund 

office

Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
02/03/2023 26/11/2022

Meets target?

Objectives extracted from Governance Policy

Risk Register - Governance Risks

26/11/2022 Governance Gloucester PF Risk Register - Aon v1 - 08 12 2022 PC Final

P
age 140



Risk 

no:
Risk Overview (this will happen) Risk Description (if this happens)

Strategic 

objectives at 

risk (see 

above)

Current 

impact (see 

key)

Current 

likelihood 

(see key)

Current 

Risk 

Status

Internal controls in place

Target 

Impact (see 

key)

Target 

Likelihood 

(see key)

Target 

Risk 

Status

Date Not 

Met Target 

From

Expected 

Back on 

Target

Further Action and Owner Risk Manager
Next review 

date
Last Updated

1

Fund assets fail to deliver returns 

in line with the anticipated returns 

underpinning valuation of liabilities 

over the long-term

- Impacts on achieving fully 

funded pension liabilities
Major Possible 3

1 - Assets invested on the basis of specialist advice, in suitably 

diversified manner, across asset classes, geographies and managers

2 - Analysis of progress at three yearly valuation for all employers

3 - Strategic asset allocation following valuation results re-examined 

by an investment specialist 

4 - Inter-valuation roll-forward of liabilities between valuations at whole 

fund level 

Major Possible 3 J

Long term forecasting of Strategic 

Asset Allocation ongoing by 

Independent Advisor and reported 

quarterly to Committee

Head of 

Pension Fund
02/03/2023 26/11/2022

2
Inappropriate long-term 

investment strategy

- Impacts on achieving fully 

funded pension liabilities Major Possible 3

1 - Regular monitoring of Fund's cash flow and actuarial estimates of 

future cash flow positions

2 -Overall investment strategy options including diversification 

considered as an integral part of the funding strategy

3 - Use of asset modelling in place

Major Possible 3 J

The new strategic asset allocation and 

strategy is tabled for formal approval 

by the Pension Committee on 8 

December 2022.

Head of 

Pension Fund
02/03/2023 26/11/2022

3

Fall in risk-free returns on 

Government bonds, leading to rise 

in value placed on liabilities.

- Impacts on achieving fully 

funded pension liabilities Moderate Possible 1

1 -Stabilisation modelling at whole fund level including Inter-valuation 

monitoring

2 - Investment in bonds

3 - Strong deficit recovery plan

Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
02/03/2023 26/11/2022

4 Increasing Pension Fund deficit

- Impacts on achieving fully 

funded pension liabilities Moderate Possible 1

1 - Triennial valuation plus regular update reports

2 - Regular consideration at PC meetings of investment performance 

relative to funding assumptions, funding position and strategy

3 - Strong deficit recovery plan

Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
02/03/2023 26/11/2022

5

Active investment manager under-

performance relative to 

benchmark.

- Impacts on achieving funding 

target
Moderate Possible 1

1 - Quarterly investment monitoring analyses market performance and 

Brunel portfolios relative to their index benchmark

2 - Diversification of investments across asset classes and across 

different fund managers

3- Brunel's portfolios monitored against agreed performance targets 

and reported to PC quarterly

Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
02/03/2023 26/11/2022

6
Pay and price inflation significantly 

more than anticipated.

- Impacts on achieving fully 

funded pension liabilities Moderate
Highly 

likely
3

1 - Focus of the valuation process on real returns on assets, net of 

price and pay increases

2 - Inter-valuation monitoring (provides early warning)

3 - Some investment in index-linked bonds

4 - Employers pay for their own salary awards

Moderate Possible 1 K Current likelihood 2 too 

high

21/09/2021 Mar 2023

Increased risk of a potential sustained 

inflationary environment is now a 

possibility. An ongoing review of the 

inflation and interest rate risks on the 

Fund is being included into the triennial 

valuation process and current SAA 

review.

Head of 

Pension Fund
02/03/2023 26/11/2022

7
Unexpected increase in employer’s 

contribution rate

- Volatility of employer contribution 

rates leading to affordability 

pressures

Moderate Possible 1

1 - Explicit stabilisation mechanism has been agreed for eligible 

employers as part of funding strategy

2 - Additional measures to limit sudden increases in contributions

3 - Discussions take place with employers regarding their ability to 

absorb rises in their contribution level     

4 - Option to use deficit spreading and phasing in of contribution 

increases, with appropriate security / analysis

Moderate Possible 1 J

Engagement with Employer base for 

the 2022 Valuation has been 

undertaken. The Contribution Strategy 

of the Fund was agreed by Committee 

at its September meeting and is being 

consulted upon.

Head of 

Pension Fund
02/03/2023 26/11/2022

8

A company, without a guarantor, 

admitted to the Fund as an 

admission body may become 

financially unviable, leaving a 

significant financial deficit with the 

Fund

- Likelihood of increased 

contribution requirements falling 

back on other Fund employers

Moderate Possible 1

1 - Community admission bodies only admitted if have a funding 

guarantee from a tax-raising scheme employer 

2 - A surety bond is required by the employer to cover costs if 

company goes into liquidation

3 - Value of surety bond reviewed regularly to ensure is adequate  

Minor Possible 1 K
Current impact 1 too 

high 31/03/2019 Mar 2023

Four Admitted Bodies without 

guarantors now remain within the 

Fund. At the 2019 valuation the 

contribution rates for these employers 

were calculated using a gilts based 

investment return, resulting in higher 

contributions, partially addressing this 

risk. Further engagement and review of 

the current position has been 

undertaken with these Employers as 

part of the 2022 valuation.

Head of 

Pension Fund
02/03/2023 26/11/2022

9
Pensioners living longer, thus 

increasing cost to Fund.

- Impacts on achieving fully 

funded pension liabilities Minor Possible 1

1 - Mortality assumptions set with some allowance for future increases 

in life expectancy

2 - Life expectancy assumptions set using ClubVita - a specialised 

longevity firm

3 - Encouragement of employers concerned at costs to promote a later 

retirement culture 

Minor Possible 1 J

Fund utilises specific Gloucestershire 

related data supplied by Club Vita 

analysis. 

Head of 

Pension Fund
02/03/2023 26/11/2022

10

Maturing Fund – i.e. proportion of 

actively contributing employees 

declines relative to retired 

employees leading to the 

possibility of there being 

insufficient liquid funds available 

to pay liabilities as they fall due

- Inefficient management of the 

Fund
Moderate Possible 1

1 - Monitored at each valuation - seeking monetary deficit amounts 

rather than % of pay

2 - Inter-valuation monitoring of level of active members, both at whole 

fund level and by individual employer

3 - Regular review of investment strategy 

4 - Regular review of how cash flow positive the fund is (significant 

cash flow modelling recently undertaken by the Actuary)

Moderate Possible 1 J

Cashflow analysis has been 

undertaken by the actuary in response 

to the 2022 valuation and this is being 

tabled to Committee in December 2022

Head of 

Pension Fund
02/03/2023 26/11/2022

Meets target?

Risk Register - Funding & Investment Risks (includes accounting and audit)

Objectives extracted from Funding Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy Statement:

26/11/2022 FundingInvestment Gloucester PF Risk Register - Aon v1 - 08 12 2022 PC Final

P
age 141



Risk 

no:
Risk Overview (this will happen) Risk Description (if this happens)

Strategic 

objectives at 

risk (see 

above)

Current 

impact (see 

key)

Current 

likelihood 

(see key)

Current 

Risk 

Status

Internal controls in place

Target 

Impact (see 

key)

Target 

Likelihood 

(see key)

Target 

Risk 

Status

Date Not 

Met Target 

From

Expected 

Back on 

Target

Further Action and Owner Risk Manager
Next review 

date
Last UpdatedMeets target?

11

Adverse demographic changes 

within employers, such as 

changing patterns of early 

retirements, reductions in payroll 

and more ill-health retirements 

than expected

- Volatility of employer contribution 

rates leading to affordability 

pressures

Moderate Possible 1

1 - Employers are charged the cost of non-ill-health retirements 

upfront following each individual decision

2 - Employers required to pay deficit recovery contributions as fixed 

monetary amounts rather than as a % of pay.

3 - Each employer’s ill-health experience monitored on an ongoing 

basis, and may be charged additional contributions if this exceeds the 

assumed number of ill-health retirements. Ill health insurance is 

available to be purchased by individual employers

Moderate Possible 1 J

IHLI procedure introduced in April 2020 

applicable to all highest risk 

employers. All other employers 

covered under a central policy unless 

formally opt out, under procedures 

agreed by PC in September 2019. To 

date 3 employers have opted out

Head of 

Pension Fund
02/03/2023 26/11/2022

12

Adverse effect on the Fund’s 

investment strategy and employer 

contributions if large numbers of 

active members are outsourced on 

a “closed” (to new entrants) basis

- Impacts on achieving fully 

funded pension liabilities Moderate Possible 1

1 - Advice provided by the actuary on likely impact on investment out-

performance assumptions and employer contributions

2 - Monitoring of levels of outsourcings on a 'closed' basis and advise 

employers of implications

3 - Regular review of investment strategy and strategic asset 

allocation

Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
02/03/2023 26/11/2022

13

Transfers out of the Fund into DC 

schemes due to introduction of 

"Freedom & Choice" resulting in a 

change in funding level

- Impacts on achieving fully 

funded pension liabilities Minor Possible 1

1 - Advice provided by the actuary on the proportion of active and 

deferred members over 55, and the maximum exposure of the Fund to 

these transfers

2 - Consideration given to impact on funding level on different possible 

levels of take up

Minor Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
02/03/2023 26/11/2022

26/11/2022 FundingInvestment Gloucester PF Risk Register - Aon v1 - 08 12 2022 PC Final

P
age 142



Risk 

no:
Risk Overview (this will happen) Risk Description (if this happens)

Strategic 

objectives at risk 

(see above)

Current 

impact (see 

key)

Current 

likelihood 

(see key)

Current 

Risk 

Status

Internal controls in place

Target 

Impact (see 

key)

Target 

Likelihood 

(see key)

Target 

Risk 

Status

Date Not 

Met Target 

From

Expected 

Back On 

Target

Further Action and Owner Risk Manager
Next review 

date
Last Updated

Previous 

Impact

Previous 

Likelihood 

Previous 

Risk 

Status

Risk removed 

(date)

1

COVID-19 having a detrimental 

impact on the Pension Fund 

service provided to members and/or 

to the collections of pension fund 

contributions and investments.

- New retirees may not receive 

accurate and timely benefits

- Contributions may not be received 

and invested

- New investments may not be 

actioned

Moderate
Highly 

likely
3

1 - Team members advised that if they display symptoms of Covid to not 

attend the office, thereby protecting team members.

2- Agile and remote working practises and processes, that are continuing 

to be developed now mean service can operate without an office 

presence.
Moderate Probable 3 K Current likelihood 1 too 

high

03/03/2022 Mar 2023

As part of the administration review, 

system support will be reviewed in 

relation to further process efficiency 

gains that can be acheived.

Head of 

Pension Fund
08/12/2022 14/09/2022 0

2

Significant additional costs resulting 

from changes to national pension 

requirements and/or HMRC rules 

e.g. public sector pensions reform, 

and/or more complex regulations 

requiring increased administration 

resources

- Inefficient management of the 

Fund Moderate Probable 3

1 - The Fund considers government consultation papers and comments 

where appropriate

2 -Results of recent forms built into the valuation

3 -Changes to contribution rates or benefit levels carefully 

communicated with membership to minimise potential opt outs or other 

adverse actions

Moderate Possible 1 K Current likelihood 1 too 

high

03/03/2022 Mar 2023

Expected regulations in relation to 

McCloud, and additional wide reaching 

consultation on pooling guidance and 

levelling up white paper, that may impact 

on the Fund

Head of 

Pension Fund
08/12/2022 14/09/2022 0

3

Under resourcing of Pension 

Administration staff resulting in a 

deterioration of performance 

against key performance indicators 

and/or intervention from the 

Pensions Regulator.

- Increase in member complaints 

due to standards not being met. 

- Increase in workloads if additional 

performance improvement activities 

needed. 

- Negative publicity. 

- Potential adverse financial 

implications

Moderate
Highly 

likely
3

1 - Additional Pension Officers recruited to improve KPIs

Moderate Probable 3 K Current likelihood 1 too 

high

03/03/2022 Mar 2023

Recruitment ongoing. 2 x Group 

Pension Leaders post filled. 

3 x Lead Pension Officer posts now 

filled. Pension Investment & Accounting 

Manager post appointed to. 4 x 

Pensions Officers appointed and 3 

starting in October/November. 3 x 

Pensions Officer posts readvertised and 

ongoing.

Pensions Administration Manager post 

offered and accepted. Hymans 

Robertson are providing an onboarding 

training plan for new starters to reduce 

burden on current team members to 

enable administrative delivery

Head of 

Pension Fund
08/12/2022 14/09/2022 0

4

Failure to collect and account for 

contributions from employers and 

employees on time

- Potential for TPR to intervene. 

- Requirement to report on 

breaches log

Moderate Possible 1

1 - Monitoring and reconciliation of contributions carried out monthly

2 - Robust debt management process to recover late payments Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
08/12/2022 14/09/2022 0

5

Failure to undertake a full 

reconciliation of Guaranteed 

Minimum Pensions records held on 

the Altair system with those held by 

HMRC.

- Non-compliance

- Additional financial costs

- Member dissatisfaction leading to 

complaints

Moderate Possible 1

1 - A detailed reconciliation procedure is underway - resulting in a 

significant reduction in potential GMP liabilities Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
08/12/2022 14/09/2022 0

6

Having inadequate resource to 

provide sufficient input to the 

oversight of the Brunel to ensure it 

operates efficiently and effectively

- Reputational damage

- Detrimental impact on Fund if 

Brunel doesn't operate efficiently

Moderate Probable 3
1 - Future recruitment of Pension Investment and Accounting Manager 

to provide greater resilience
Moderate Possible 1 K Current likelihood 1 too 

high

03/03/2022 Mar 2023

Recruitment to posts within the senior 

leadership team will provide greater 

resilience and reduce key person risk

Head of 

Pension Fund
08/12/2022 14/09/2022 0

7
Loss of funds through fraud or 

misappropriation

- Significant reputational damage

- Additional financial costs

- Member dissatisfaction leading to 

complaints

Moderate Possible 1

1 - Documented checking procedures and processes in place, and staff 

trained on implementing them

2 - Multiple authorisation levels for claims and payments

3 - Internal Auditors carry out regular reviews

Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
08/12/2022 14/09/2022 0

8

Loss of Pensions Administration 

software usage due to expiration of 

the contract

- Significant reputational damage

- Additional financial costs

- Member dissatisfaction leading to 

complaints

- Inability to manage and pay 

benefits

Moderate Possible 1

1- Procurement identified as part of Business Plan 2022/23

2- Project plan being developed with internal procurement oversight

3- Access to the LGPS National Frameworks

4- Quarterly oversight of project by Committee and LPB

Minor Rare 1 K
Current impact 1 too high

Current likelihood 1 too 

high

07/06/2022 Dec 2022
Project plan and procurement process 

ongoing and operating to plan

Head of 

Pension Fund
08/12/2022 14/09/2022 0

Risk Register - Operational Risks

Objectives extracted from Administration Strategy and Communications Strategy:

Meets target?

26/11/2022 Operational Gloucester PF Risk Register - Aon v1 - 08 12 2022 PC Final

P
age 143



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 145

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 155

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 161

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 175

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 199

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 219

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 229

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 233

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 247

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 263

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Pension Committee Minutes
	6 Draft Minutes of the Pension Board
	7 Gloucestershire Pension Fund Quarterly Update - Part 1
	Agenda Item 7 - Gloucestershire Pension Fund Update - Part 1 - Appendix 1 - Quarterly Performance Report
	Summary
	Pension Fund performance
	Overview of assets

	Performance attribution
	Pension Fund performance attribution

	Responsible investment
	Risk and return
	Risk and return summary
	Portfolio overview
	CIO commentary
	Portfolios
	Listed markets
	Global High Alpha Equities
	Global Sustainable Equities
	UK Active Equities
	Emerging Markets Equities
	Diversifying Returns Fund
	Multi-Asset Credit
	Sterling Corporate Bonds
	PAB Passive Global Equities
	Passive Developed Equities (Hedged)

	Private markets
	Private Equity Cycle 1
	Private Equity Cycle 2
	Private Debt Cycle 2
	Infrastructure Cycle 1
	Infrastructure (General) Cycle 2
	Infrastructure (Renewables) Cycle 2

	Property
	UK Property
	International Property


	Glossary

	Agenda Item 7 - Gloucestershire Pension Fund Update - Part 1 - Appendix 2 - Strategic Asset Allocation
	Agenda Item 7 - Gloucestershire Pension Fund Update - Part 1 - Appendix 3 - Response to consultation on Governance and Reporting of Climate Related Risks
	Agenda Item 7 - Gloucestershire Pension Fund Update - Part 1 - Appendix 4 - Pensions Admin Summary
	Agenda Item 7 - Gloucestershire Pension Fund Update - Part 1 - Appendix 5 - Administration Strategy Review
	Agenda Item 7 - Gloucestershire Pension Fund Update - Part 1 - Appendix 6 - Business Plan
	Agenda Item 7 - Gloucestershire Pension Fund Update - Part 1 - Appendix 7 - Governance Review Work Plan
	Agenda Item 7 - Gloucestershire Pension Fund Update - Part 1 - Appendix 8 - Audit Findings Report

	8 Risk Register
	Agenda Item 8 - Risk Register - Appendix 1 - Assessment Key
	Agenda Item 8 - Risk Register - Appendix 2 - Risk Register

	10 Exempt Minutes
	11 Draft Exempt Minutes of the Pension Board
	12 Gloucestershire Pension Fund Quarterly Update - Part 2
	Agenda Item 12 - Gloucestershire Pension Fund Update - Part 2 - Appendix 1 - Cashflow projections
	Agenda Item 12 - Gloucestershire Pension Fund Update - Part 2 - Appendix 2 - Brunel Climate Change Policy 2020
	Agenda Item 12 - Gloucestershire Pension Fund Update - Part 2 - Appendix 3 - Brunel Climate Change Policy 2020 review

	13 Investment Advisors Quarterly Report and Strategy Asset Allocation
	Agenda Item 13 - Quarterly investment report and Strategic Asset Allocation Review - Appendix 1 - Quarterly Performance Review
	Agenda Item 13 - Quarterly investment report and Strategic Asset Allocation Review - Appendix 2 - Investment Strategy Statement
	Agenda Item 13 - Quarterly investment report and Strategic Asset Allocation Review - Appendix 3 - Social Affordable Housing Portfolio Specification




